TOWN OF LADYSMITH

A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH

WILL BE HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT CITY HALL ON
MONDAY, JUNE 23, 2014

LADYSMITH

4:30 pP.m.
AGENDA

CALL To ORDER 4:30 P.M.

1.  AGENDA APPROVAL

2.  REPORTS
2.1. Upper Section of Transfer Beach Park.........ccciimmemmmminiiiimmmesssssssmmmssssssssssssnmeessne 1-3
2.2. 2015/ 2016 Municipal Policing CONtracCt......cccccseemersmesssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnns 4-23
2.3. New and Updated Zoning Bylaw..........cccccceeeecmemmrieessssssscceensseessssssssscsssssssssssssssnnnnes 24 - 29

3. ByLaws

Bylaws 1858, 1859, 1860 and 1861 are the subject of a staff report under
agenda item 2.3.

The complete set of attachments for the new and updated Zoning Bylaw and
Design Guidelines for the Town of Ladysmith (Bylaws 1858, 1859, 1860 and
1861) is distributed separately for Council, is available online at
www.ladysmith.ca and will be available at the meeting. Copies are also available
for review at City Hall and the Ladysmith Branch of the Vancouver Island
Regional Library.

3.1. Town of Ladysmith Area G and Area H Land Use Regulations Repeal Bylaw
20714, NO. 1858 ...iiciissssnmmmnnniirsssssssssmsssnssessssssssssssssssesssssssssnsssssseessssssssnnnnnsssessssssssnnnnnnnnes 30
May be read a first and second time. A public hearing has been scheduled
for July 14, 2014.

The purpose of Bylaw No. 1858 is to repeal land use regulations for areas
formerly within Electoral Area “G” and Electoral Area “H” of the CVRD that
will now be covered by the Town’s Zoning Bylaw.

3.2. Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No.
43), 2014, NO. 1859......ucceeririeisssssnmceenr s e e e s sssssssmmes s s s e e e s s s s s ssmmmns s s e eesssssnnnmmnnnnnens 31-35
May be read a first and second time. A public hearing has been scheduled
for July 14, 2014.


http://www.ladysmith.ca/
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The purpose of Bylaw 1859 is to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP)
Bylaw by updating the land use designation maps in the OCP and the
South Ladysmith Area Plan; amending the “Parks & Open Space, Land Use
& Circulation” map in the Holland Creek Area Plan by removing areas
covered by the OCP Land Use map; and adding new and updated policies
to the OCP about school planning, commercial land use, and detached
secondary suites to support the community’s vision.

3.3. Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, NO. 1860........ccccccerrrrrrrrsrsmmccenreeeessssnes

May be read a first and second time. A public hearing has been scheduled
for July 14, 2014.

The purpose of Bylaw 1860 is to adopt a nhew and updated Zoning Bylaw
for all properties located within the Town of Ladysmith.

3.4. Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No.

44), 2014, NO. 1861.....cerrirmrrirnmrrssansrssnssrassssrsssnsssssssssssssssssnssassnsssssnssssnsnsssnnnssses

May be read a first and second time. A public hearing has been scheduled
for July 14, 2014.

The purpose of Bylaw 1861 is to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP)
Bylaw by adding new and updated Development Permit Areas (DPA) and
guidelines and a DPA map to support the community’s vision.

3.5. Town of Ladysmith Waterworks Regulations Bylaw 1999, No. 1298,

Amendment Bylaw 2014, NO. 1863 .......ooeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeessssssssnessnsnssnsnns

May be adopted.

The purpose of Bylaw 1863 is to authorize an increase in water rates to
support planned capital upgrades to the water supply system.

3.6. Town of Ladysmith Sanitary Sewer Rates Bylaw 1999 No. 1299,

Amendment Bylaw 2014, NO. 1864 ... eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnns

May be adopted.
The purpose of Bylaw 1864 is to authorize an increase in sewer rates to

support planned capital upgrades to the sanitary sewer (waste water
treatment) system.

4. NEwW BUSINESS

4.1. Statement of Financial Information for the Fiscal Year Ended December

G Bt T 0 5

Staff Recommendation
That Council approve the Statement of Financial Information for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2013.
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5. QUESTION PERIOD

A maximum of 15 minutes is allotted for questions.

Persons wishing to address Council during “Question Period” must be Town
of Ladysmith residents, non-resident property owners, or operators of a
business.

Individuals must state their name and address for identification purposes.
Questions put forth must be on topics which are not normally dealt with by
Town staff as a matter of routine.

Questions must be brief and to the point.

Questions shall be addressed through the Chair and answers given likewise.
Debates with or by individual Council members or staff members are not
allowed.

No commitments shall be made by the Chair in replying to a question.
Matters which may require action of the Council shall be referred to a future
meeting of the Council.

ADJOURNMENT






Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
From: Clayton Postings, Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture
Date: June 10, 2014

LADYSMITH Flle NO:

RE: UPPER SECTION OF TRANSFER BEACH PARK

RECOMMENDATIONS:

THAT Council consider the following recommendation relating to the upper Transfer Beach
area (above de Koninck Way) and refer the recommendation to Parks, Recreation & Culture
Commission meeting scheduled for June 25, 2014 for comment:

e Request staff to review the upper Transfer Beach area and develop, through consultation
with stakeholders, a plan to manage the various uses in this area such as dogs off leash,
access to the Horseshoe Club area, camping, pathways and usage during major/special
events.

AND THAT Council consider directing staff to install a painted crosswalk from upper beach
area to lower beach area across de Koninck Way in accordance with the Municipal
Insurance Association’s risk control survey report.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

The upper area of Transfer Beach above de Koninck Way is utilized by the community for
many purposes throughout the year such as major events, camping, off leash dog area, as
well as access to the Horseshoe Club area. These varied uses have created some conflicts
between user groups who are currently unclear of existing boundaries.

At this point it would be valuable to review this area and develop a practical solution to
determine how multiple usage of the area can continue. As an example, the lower area of
Transfer Beach is well desighed and usage areas are identified which has permitted varied
uses and limited conflicts.

Furthermore, in May 2014 the Town commissioned the Municipal Insurance Association
(MIA) to assess the Transfer Beach area as part of an annual risk control survey program.
Some of the recommendations contained in the report relate to the upper Transfer Beach
area and include:

e Defining a dog park area with fencing. This is based on the proximity to the many other
activities in that area. By defining the off leash area and fencing it off the town would be
taking appropriate measures to reduce possible incidents.

e Defining lane access and parking to the Horseshoe Club and upper park area thus
controlling vehicle traffic crossing park area.

e OQOutlining camping in the upper area by defining the type of camping and area where
camping is permitted.

e |Installing a cross walk across de Koninck Way from the upper section of Transfer Beach
to the lower area assisting pedestrians crossing the roadway.

1



Report to Council - Upper Section of Transfer Beach
June 10, 2014
Page 2

The recommendation relating to the addition of the painted crosswalk across de Koninck
Way is a higher priority and due to public works operations currently painting roadways, this
recommendation can be handled prior to the high volume summer period.

ALTERNATIVES:
Council may choose to direct staff to review each area/usage independently, rather than the
entire upper Transfer Beach area.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;

Any recommendations relating to the upper Transfer Beach area and costs associated would
be referred back to Council for consideration. The cost of installing the painted crosswalk
would be covered under operational budget.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;
The MIA report and recommendations is based on risk management recommendations
which assist in limiting exposure to the town.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
Municipal parks are a critical part of the community and public participation regarding parks
usage will be vital through this process.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
This initiative will involve most departments as the process progresses.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT
This aligns with Strategy 7 - A Healthy Community: Continuing to enhance the quality of the
public realm; increasing community facilities including health and medical facilities

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
This aligns with Strategic Priorities E - Responsible Stewardship of the Environment and
F - Safe and Healthy Community

SUMMARY:
With the continuing increase in usage at Transfer Beach by residents and visitors, there is
currently a need to review the area above de Koninck Way and outline specific uses for this
area. This process will assist in making the area safe for all users. Also with increased
traffic, and in accordance with the MIA risk control survey report, it is recommended that a
painted crosswalk be installed to assist pedestrian traffic crossing from upper to lower
beach areas.

| concur with the recommendation.

v/‘\'r-_ﬂ”_( ]"‘VI(‘-\(_’I ‘ )

Ruth Malli, City Manager
ATTACHMENT:
Map of area
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
From: Erin Anderson, Director of Financial Services
Date: June 10, 2014

LADYSMITH File No:

Re:  2015-2016 MUNICIPAL POLICING CONTRACT

RECOMMENDATION(S):
That Council direct staff to include the calculations of the 2015/16 costs for the royal
Canadian Mounted Police in the 2015-2019 Financial Plan.

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE CITY MANAGER:

That Council direct the City Manager to work with the Royal Canadian Mounted
Police Detachment to provide Council with further information for a request for an
increase in contract strength.

PURPOSE:
The purpose of this report is to advise Council of the information, dated May 9, 2014,
received from the RCMP E-Division.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

Since 2013, the RCMP has provided information to the municipalities regarding
human and financial resource requirements in the coming year. As the information is
received, it is incorporated into the Town’s Financial Plan.

The information recently received concerns the RCMP per member costs. The RCMP
has cost-sharing arrangements with municipalities that do not have their own police
force. Municipalities with a population under 5,000 do not pay for policing.
Communities like the Town of Ladysmith with a population between 5,000 and
15,000 pay 70 per cent of the RCMP member costs and communities over 15,000
pay 90 per cent of the RCMP policing cost.

There is a separate rental agreement for the RCMP to use the building on 6th Avenue
as their detachment. These costs, together with the RCMP detachment member
costs and staffing costs, make up the basis of the Police Tax. This Police Tax is
included in the municipal tax levy of the Property Tax each year.

2013
Canada’s
Greenest
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Included in the 2014-2018 Financial Plan is RCMP cost of $159,130 per
detachment member. The Ladysmith RCMP Detachment currently has 7 full time
members related to municipal policing. Based on historical trends of absenteeism
for a variety of reasons, the Town does not budget for the full cost of the 7 members.
Rather the Town budgets a range of 6.5 to 6.7 full time members. With a more
consistent force, the budget number is expected to increase to the full 7 in future
years.

The City Manager is working with the RCMP to confirm that the Ladysmith
detachment continues to require 7 full time members.

The recent information received from E-Division estimates the per-member cost at
$163,180 for 2015/16. (Please note that the RCMP fiscal year runs from April 1 to
March 31, hence the multi-year reference.) This amounts to a difference of $4,050
or a 2.5% increase per detachment member for a total increase of over $25,000 in
2015.

Below are the estimated per member costs for the next five years:
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
$163,180 $165,410 $167,790 $170,080 $172,720

Costs for staff overtime are also estimated to increase slightly from $73,040 to
$74,140 in 2015/2016. Support staff costs are expected to increase from
$130,606 to $132,750 with note that future increases of 1.5% per year have been
budgeted, based on the Public Service Support Staff contract.

Below are some reasons provided by RCMP E-Division regarding the changes in
costs. Please note that these costs are not unique to Ladysmith; a formula of direct
and indirect costs is used to determine the per-member cost.

¢ New pension rate of 22.70%
Includes a 1.5% increase in wages per year
Additional support positions to E-Division (factors into the per-member cost)
Green Timbers (new head-office for E-Division) allocation decreased
Technology upgrades
e Legal, public complaints, and reporting requirements

SCOPE OF WORK:
The Financial Services Department will include the increased costs in the 2015-2019
Financial Plan.

ALTERNATIVES:

There are very few alternatives available to Council. The Town could create its own
Police Force though there is a substantial cost to this and it would result in a loss of
rental revenue from the use of the detachment building in Ladysmith.

2013
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;
Police costs are included in the overall municipal taxes. Any increases here will
directly affect the budget changes in future years.

Council may also recall that the Town was required in include costs for the Closed
Circuit Video Equipment at the Ladysmith Detachment in the 2014 budget. Staff are
preparing a request for quotations for this equipment with the assistance of E-
Division. $75,000 has been allocated for this project, from reserve funds.

The detachment has also requested that the Town install a back-up generator at the
detachment. Included in the 2014-2018 Financial Plan is an allocation of $25,000
each year to fund this purchase.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;
There are no legal implications.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
None.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
None,

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
None.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
Not applicable.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
Providing RCMP service aligns with Strategic Direction F - Safe & Healthy Community.

SUMMARY: _

[t is recommended that Council direct staff to include the 2015/16 costs for the
Ladysmith Royal Canadian Mounted Police Detachment in the 2015-2019 Financial
Plan, and also that Council direct the City Manager to work with the Royal Canadian
Mounted Police Detachment to provide further information for a request for an
increase in contract strength.

| concur with the recommendation.
el
e e

Ruth Malli, City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Letter from RCMP: Municipal Contract Multi-year Plan 2015/16.
2013
Canada’s
Greenest
Employers



: - 1 Security Classification/Designation
RDy al . Gendarmerie Clnssiﬁ’éalion.’désignalim sécuritaire
Canadian  royale
Mounted du

Police Canada Unclassified
May 9, 2014
Ruth Malli Your File Votre
City Manager
Town of Ladysmith
410 Esplanade, P.O. Box 220 OurFile  Notre
Ladysmith, BC V9G 1A2 AAY 1 ¢ 0 E753-40

Dear Ms. Malli:

Re: Municipal Contract Policing Multi-Year Plan - 2015/2016

In keeping with the Municipal Police Service Agreement of 2012, we are communicating
with our Municipal Partners to establish projections of our human and financial resource
needs in 2015/2016.

We are asking that you meet with your Detachment Commander to discuss the police
service needs of the community and the related human and financial resource
requirements.

For this 5 year plan cycle, we would like to highlight some items of interest that will
carry over into the 2015/16 fiscal year.

Health Modernization — We continue to realize savings in relation to members’
health care costs since members were switched over to an MSP plan in fiscal
2013/14. This has resulted in a $1,750 per FTE reduction in Division
Administration,

Severance — The liquidation of severance will reduce the outstanding liability
as employees ceased to earn severance as of April 1, 2012. The total liability
for this payout remains under discussion between the Provincial and Federal
Governments. Payments for severance made for 2013/14 will be deducted
from the final liability once settled.

In accordance with Section 11.2(i) of the Municipal Police Service Agreement of 2012,
beginning April 1, 2015, all costs of recruiting, the Cadet Training Program at Depot, and
the Police Dog Service Training Centre will be determined based on actual expenditures
for the previous three-year period. These costs will be included separately and will
replace the flat rate of $3,500 per FTE previously included for these three National
Programs.



Also new in the 5 year plan for Lower Mainland District (LMD) municipalities, is a
forecast for the Real Time Intelligence Centre (RTIC). RTIC is a multi-agency policing
centre launching May 2014 to support front line police officers in the Lower Mainland by
providing a coordinated regional response to serious crimes. RTIC-BC will enbance the
Provincial Intelligence Centre, and will gradually add staff until early 2015, when it is
anticipated to be running 24/7.

Many of these initiatives have been discussed at different meetings/forums such as the
Government Finance Officers Association of BC’s (GFOABC) annual budget meetings,
Lower Mainland CAO/PPC meetings; and local presentations before Mayor and Council.
The next GFOABC meeting is on May 29th in Nanaimo, BC. We hope to see you or
your representative there. If you have questions or would like a custom presentation on
your 5 year municipal plan please contact Brad Lanthier, Senior Financial Manager, at
778-290-2705.

Attached for your information are:

a. Our five year budget for your RCMP Municipal Policing costs. This is a
detailed listing of actual costs for fiscal year 2012/2013, pre-final costs for
2013/2014, a revised estimate for the current year (2014/2015) and forecasted
estimates for 2016 — 2020 inclusive (see schedules 1, 2 and 3 for 2015/2016).

b. Five year budget for Division Administration Costs (schedule 4)
c. 2013/2014 Per Capita Analysis (schedule 5) and

d. Sample Response Letter (schedule 6)

A number of items remain under discussion between the Provincial and Federal
Governments, including:

Division Administration costs associated to Green Timbers: Last year’s plan included an
estimate of $1200 per member in relation to accommodation charges at the new
headquarters. This estimate has been reduced to $900 per member. While this item is
currently still under discussion, this provisional amount has been included in the Division
Administration estimate.

Severance Liguidation: As of April 1, 2012, severance no longer accumulates for
members who resign or retire, but will continue to accrue for lay-off, death, and
disability. For budgeting purposes, an estimated amount of $1,023 per full time
equivalent (FTE) has been included. The payment amount and schedule for severance
liquidation is currently being discussed between the Provincial and Federal
Governments.

Pension Rates: Based on the latest Pension Panel Report, a new pension contribution rate
has been set at 22.70% for provinces, territories and local government effective April 1,



2015 to cover the Employer’s responsibility for RCMP members’ pension under the
RCMP Policing Agreements.

We recognize that your calendar year Budget Cycles are not synchronized with the
Government of Canada’s fiscal year, however, we are requesting that you provide
information earlier than the Municipal Budget Cycle normally requires. This is to ensure
that the Federal Treasury Board can secure their share of the Municipal Contract costs
within the federal budget cycle time lines.

Please submit a “Letter of Approval in Principle” by June 13, 2014. The letter should
address all increases for fiscal year 2015/2016, including:

- Proposed establishment increase in regular and/or civilian
members;

- Estimated Municipal Policing Budget at 100% costs;

- Proposed overtime levels at 100% costs: and

- If applicable, estimates for Reservists, LMD Integrated Units,
RTIC, Public Service support staff (100%) and Accommodation
(100%) costs.

We would like to emphasize that this “Letter of Approval in Principle” is for planning
purposes only to address the Federal Government’s Annual Reference Level Update
(ARLU) process. It is not a final commitment on your part for the additional personnel or
for the increased financial budget indicated. A copy of a sample response is provided for
your reference (schedule 6).

First Reply Letter:

Approval in Principle Letter for 2015/2016 Due: June 13, 2014

A) Please address the letter to:
Mr. Clayton Pecknold
Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services
Ministry of Justice
P.O. Box 9285 Stn Prov Govt.
Victoria, BC VW 9J7

B) Please forward a copy to the RCMP addressed to:
Mr. Max Xiao :
Regional Director, Financial Management, RCMP “E” Division
Mailstop #908, 14200 Green Timbers Way
Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3

Second Reply Letter:

Final Confirmation Letter for 2015/2016 Due: May 4, 2015

By May 4th, 2015, please forward a second letter to confirm the 2015/2016 budget to:

A) Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services
3

9



B) Regional Director, Financial Management, RCMP “E” Division

Third Reply Letter: Annex A Letter Due on: Establishment Change
When you decide to change human resources (establishment changes) to your

detachment strength, please be advised that a third letter is required that outlines your
request.

A) Please address the letter to:
The Honourable Suzanne Anton, Q.C.
Minister of Justice and Attorney General
Ministry of Justice
P.O. Box 9044 Stn Prov Gov't.
Victoria, BC V8W 917

B) Please forward a copy of the letter to:
a) Regional Director, Financial Management, RCMP “E” Division
b) C/Supt. Ray Bernoties, District Commander, Island District

If you have any questions regarding your municipal budget or your contractual
obligations, please contact Bradley Lanthier, Sr. Manager Contract Policing at 778-290-
2705.

Yours truly,

A

Robert H. Jorssen

Executive Director,

Corporate Management & Comptrollership Branch
Royal Canadian Mounted Police, Pacific Region
Mailstop # 906, 14200 Green Timbers Way
Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3

Cc: Mayor Robert Hutchins, Town of Ladysmith
C/Supt. Ray Bernoties, District Commander, Island District
NCO i/c Ladysmith Detachment
Max Xiao, Regional Director, Financial Management & Accounting Operations

RCMP E Division
i+l Finance Section, Mailstop #908
Canada 14200 Green Timbers Way
Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3
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Schedule 1

Ladysmith
FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016

Municipal
Cost

Contract Strength - FTE 8.00
Per Capita 100% $ 163,180
Contract Cost ( Excludes OT) $ 1,305,440
Overtime (includes Reservists) $ 74,140
Total Policing Cost 100% Per Capita & Overtime $ 1,379,580
Total Policing Cost 70% Per Capita & Overtime $ 965,706
Accommodation Estimate @ 100% $ -

Public Service Support Staff Estimate @ 100% $ 132,750
Total Municipal Cost for 2015/16 $ 1,098,456
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RCMP Municipal Undar - B Yenr Foracast Seheduls 2
[Tolal of All Detachments MuniUndar MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder
2015-18 lo 2019-20 Fiscal 12713 Final | 13/14 Pra Finnl | 14/15 Budget 15716 19/20
CONTRAGYT STRENGTH| 42095 423,95 436.95 458,95
UTILIZATION|  a74.01 386,17 436.95 450.95
COST ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)
535,796 869,847 - - .
4,500 4045 . . -
1,191 6,456 - - x
10,449 17,183 = - S
56,397 96,272 96,000 50,563
B70 1,160 T =
CE 500110 - Eﬁuun PAY 29,614,625 31,601,077 36.640,000 42,433,464
'CE 500114 - SEAVIGE PAY 626,608 758,006 733,000 §27.864
| CE 500121 - PLAINGLOTHES 9,756 {4689) - -
CE 600122 - KIT UPKEEP 39,891 a - -
CE 500163 - MARKET ADJUSTMENT * = = -
"~ CE 500164 - SENIOR CST ALLOWANCE 256,35 316.672 370,000 392,705
CE 501198 - BILINGUAL BONUS 788 279 2,40 2400
ALL OTHER CE's CEG 30 26,965 156,050 87,001 83,277
30 - TOTAL AGMP PAY 30,658,060 92,831,537 37,832,401 43,748,710
EQ 31 -0 - 785 T84 3 T
G 33 - RCMP PAY - OTHER
CE 500112 - RETAOACTIVE PAY 57,150 14,421 - =
CE 500117 - SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL 426242 713,125 540,0 700,000 750,235
| CE 500118 - PERFORMANCE AWARD E E C: =
CE 501127 - RETRO PAY - PRIOR YEAR (25.255)| - =18 Trrerid
ALL_OTHER CE's CEG 33 78,018 | 140,081 94,000 101,738
ICEG 33 - RCMP PAY - OTHER 535,158 BGT.638 634,000 851,074
5 - PERSONNEL - OPERATIONAL Y - . % -
T D DB 01 - PERSONNEL ATS 843 30,701,017 41,753,400 48,140,544
STANDARD OBJ, 02- TRANSPORT & TELECOM =
CEG 50 - TRAVEL ‘.meu 237,060 390000] 40000 360,854
CEG 51- TRAVEL ADVANCES . - - -
CEG 52 - TRAINING TRAVEL EG 412,562 378,752 450,000 432,100 495,800
CEG 53 - TRAINING TRAVEL 5,507 05,751 85,000 95.000 100,830 |
CEG 54 - IPA & FSD TRAVEL - 2,040 | . .
CEG 55 - CENTRALIZED TRAINI WEL = T56 - - =
CEG 70 - FREIGHT, POSTAGE, ETC. 78,520 95,108 5,000 102,342 |
‘CE 600228 - TELEFHONE & OTHER VOICL SEAVIGES .85C - am 3 ; X 3
CE 500227 - TELEPHONE GTIS - ot 4 b -t
GE 600228 . ALL TELEPHONE wmmnmum.u: . - 5 :
CE 506230 - DATA O 5C = s . - -
CEG 100 - TELEMONE sEmm:!s (DCCEG) - a8 - - w -
CE 100235 - TOLLA - (el FAX) - 856 - . - . %
CE 100230 - COLL FHONE EXPENSES . . ] W .
CEG 101 - TILAPHDNI SERVICES (FOST) 1,088 an v 5
CRG 140 COMM BERVICES. T ] ] Erues :
TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 02- TRANGPORT & TELECOM 2,187.253 2,067,008 970,000 061,525 1,058,835
1,008 1263 5,000 |
1,871 2.514 6,000 ﬁ 019
3,678 2,778 10,000 8,307
ANDARD OB.). 04 - PROF & SPEC S
CEG 170- D SERVICES 33,134 447,188 - - -
171 - CONTRACT 2] = = -
EG 190 - TRAINING & u%umms OCCEG) 437,635 568,304 330,000 508,200 | 583,200
CEG 191~ & SEMINARS (POST) 1531 547 25,000 25378 26912
G 192 - OFFICIAL LANGUAGE TRAINING . - - .
CEG 210 - PROT] CES - - - a - -
CEG213- CORPS OF AIRES - . . - -
CEGZ18- AM 0 - 3 . - - -
G219~ AL SERVICES 297,747 206,510 | 370,000 381,183 | 708
CEG 220 - OTHER SERVICES 23,431 71,781 35,000 36,599 37,708
CE §00472 - |WAT COMPUTER SERVICES * o -~ - - -
CE 500470 - 41T CONSULTING SERVICES - 201,512 - - - -
cnmn-mlgmn.ue - = = - + -
|_CE 407477 . SOFTWARE MANTENANGE = 7,367 . - -
CEG 221 - OTHER SERVICES IMAT 185,761 208.779 265000 | 147,722 156,719
CEG 223 - AADIO COMMUNICATION E'Wrsus 498,467 508,871 520,000 847,362 910,559
CEG 226 - CADC SPENDING OF PROGEED! - - - . .
200 - DIV FUND TRANSFER - - =1 - . - -
CEG 231 - DGM FI.IND SFER - - - - . - -
CEG 232 - TIOMAL CONTINGENCY . = - - - - -
233- BUHFDH TE CONTINGENCY - - - - - - .
D G4 - PROF & 5P 4,105,404 2,196,082 1,805,000 1 2,107,820
Tol4
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RCMP Municipal Under - 5 Year Forecast Seheduls 2
Tolal of All Detachmants MuniUnder | MuniUnder | MuniUnder | MunlUnder | MuniUnder | MuniOnder | MuniUndsr | MuniUnder
1516 la 2015-20 Fiscal Estimates 12/13Final | 13/14 Pro Final | 14/18 Budget |15/16 Estimates| 16117 Estl i7rie 18/19 Estimates|19/20 Estimates|
CONTRACT STRENGTH| 430,95 421,05 436.95 44095 451.05 458,35 465,95 46065
UTILIZATION o 388.7 436.05 440.95 451.95 458,985 465,85 468.05
COST ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)
2,005 4,072 5 g 5 7S
) 4,508 15,225 15,453 15,685 15920
: £ 70,019 72,120 74,204 76,512
37 5,508 10,150 10,302 10457 10614
. 5,925 = = .
30,794 30 [INIZ] n_:.'u; u;:
[TRLT] 61,088 159,689 163,167 166,728
74,528 188,764
2,018 841
51 -
460,453 | £12,208
2,368 4,159
16,751 7,820
A 712,893
123,032 123,283
801,823 1.078.224
,072 6,160
181 169,804
141,013 100,655
197
24,797 212,231
2,087 -
1,631,028 1,768,563
V611954 | 1 -1 -1 - | | -]
STANDARD OB.J. 09 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT
CEG 440 - TRANSPORT SUPPLIES 35,55 7 40,000 0,600 [TFTT) a1az7 12,955
CEG 441 - EOVER: 199,674 259,803 305,000 310,590 318,248 319,978 19,870 324,777
CEG 450 - COMN & MABLES 56,021 63,518 60,000 41,458 42,701 43,082 45,302
CEG 480 FIREARMS & AMWO 18,273 50,387 122,00 000 126,875 128,778 130,710 132,670
CEG 770~ 5 (CAPITAL) 204,752 206,605 233,00 i 214,480 220914 226,517 233,313
CEG 771 - COMMS. EQUIPMENT 6,346 5,708 8,00 7,622 7,851 8,088 8,329
CEG 810- LAB EQUIP. - - - - - - - -
CEG 811- SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT - NON SALARY (CAPITAL) - - - - = - - =
CEG 812 - SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT - SALARY [CAPITAL) - - p . - = . -
= PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIP, 1312 169!  3.000] 080 3,045 1091 3137 3,183
AFIS EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL) - 200,619 - 5 118,476 120,259 122,057 123,888
- . 115.000 . - P . -
COMPUTER EGUIPMENT (CAPITAL] - . " % - :
841 - COMPUTER EQUIP. 115,493 302,833 336,730 346,832 357,236
642 - COMPUTER SIWARE INFORMATIGS 5 20 . ' g
B45 - SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL) & . i . .
CEG 850 - AUDIO VISUAL 265 2 41 4,245 4,309
88,060 d.40 [F ] 008 53,064 |
- 142 . F f
1,206,410 605,450 1,313,837 1.333,240 1,363,239
2062 10,189 10457 106 10,773
45110 45,420 47,058 47,781 40,470
155,903 az7,310 300,008 313,704 318,409
3,307,138 3,543,180 2,960,088 3,008,757 3,060,238
97,868 47,369 39,000 60,000 50,750 51511 5228 53,068
5 1518 ] 3,000 3,043 3091 337 3104 3232
- PAYMENTS FOR EARLY PAYMENT - - - St 3 5 . =
~ PAYMENT IM I.IEG.I OF TAXES 108 803 120,025 - - - . . -
FOREIGN SERVICE = -

T ) N S 1§ _—Y 1)
[TCTALDIRECT COSTS (Bafars Cradits & Adjusiments) | B0SIBETZ] A9076334] 503424001 _ B1.502,490 | T Eiai6381] 8643031

2eld
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ACMP Under - § Year Schedule 2
Tolal of All Delachments MuniUnder | MuniUnder MuniUndar MunlUnder | MuniUnder | MuniUnder | MuniUnder MuniUnder
2015-16 1o 2019-20 Fiseal Estimaies 12113 Final | 13(14 Pra Final | 14115 Budgat |15M16 Estimates| 1617 17118 18/19 Estimates| 19/20 Estimates
CONTRACT STRENGTH|  420.85 42105 436.95 440,95 451,85 asnes 165.95 468,95
UTILIZATION|  a74.01 38817 438,95 440.95 451,85 458.95 465.05 468.95
COST ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)
.0, 01 - CEG 32 - Pay Members (Mal/Pal/Severance) 4,801,032 766,038 - - = s P by
0. 01 - CEG's 40 & 41 -Transfer Allowances 271,617 263,996 - - = = = =
.0.02 - CEG's 60-G6 Translar Cosl 1,383,116 1,257,180 - - = - - -
100% SHARED SEAVICES CANADA = (Various DEGs) L2 448 - - - - . _
vicos 110,888 181,896 - - - 3 = .
D. 04 - CEG's 200, 201 & 202 - Heallh Services 2,236,006 - - . - - . .
.D.M-Cmau-burnﬁl‘ﬁmm i = = - - = £ * C
.0.12 - CEG 682 Paymant In Lisu of Taxes - = = = = s = =
.0.12 - CEQ 820 - Gompensation Glaims/Ex-Gratia 862,580 - - - - - -
ICBC Aepairs 1o Polica Vehicies Credit - - . = " s .
i d d 1691 - - - - - -
[FCTAL DIRECT COSTS (ATier Grediis & Adu ) | a1.400,084] 45.749,10830]  602G400] Wi, EIA17 400 EXET 5420214 57,581,604
[INBIRECT COSTS:
1) Cost of RM Pansions 4,756,628 5,092,843 7,635,894 8,147,189 8,423,814 9,704,652 9,910,010
867,359 921,333 1,062,662 1 13 1,154,597 1,201,708 1,250,624 1,290,142
379,276 419,480 465,535 481 508,500 526,572 547,067 585,282
8,125,096 8,348 976 10,762,688 10362325 | 10,646,000 11,200,170 11,695,345 12,082,015
1,309,035 1,358,595 538,325 769,03 1,679,660 800,773 1,937,866 1,850,363
|6) Cost ol ms 517,877 968 478 o491 | 1118300 1,147,411 ,186,339 1,185,321 1,194,635
[7) Cost of Police Dog Service Training - L. ol Z 7 8,453 8,453 8,453 8,453
8) Cosl of TCE & IM for Pensian, El & Div Admin 1,77 L] 36, 3,622 3,713 3,006 3,901
FETAL ECT COSTS - (REGULAR & CIVILIAN MEMBERS] 16,057,015 17,116, % zz.svu.iig 24,690,622 28,528,822 26,134,054 26,974,601 |
[roTAL coSTS (Direct & Indirect ) 100% | sasssaca| 2880472 BIB390] 75232403 7aani0]  eoa4sspoz|  m27sazer|  masssanr |
FEDERAL COST - 30 % | 17soasaz]| 1058052 21845520 | 22960,748| 21433333 | 24133801 | 24826280 25366072 |
[MumICIPAL COST - 70% [_aosssme]  asoozwzo] everaeve| ssseamas| sasragiv]  ssawam|  srsmewr|  ssaeoaes)
7401 388,17 136,65 ELILTS 457,68 AEBEE 6505 |
Xl 0.02 - - . < - r:
0.03 - . - - T r
1.06 - (K1) 054 0,54 (K] (518
[[NDIRECT COSTS - (REGULAA & CIVILIAN MEMBERS) 1 | 1 |
1) Pensions (Total Pansionable Earnings) 30,530,343 37,608,335 47,745,400 | 30,756,008 40,295,986 41,614,598 42,751,772 43,656,433
Penaion Rale 15.50%) 15.58% 2023%| 22 22.70% 22.70% 22.70% 22.70%|
Tolal Cost of AMICM Pension.... . 4,756,628 5,092,043 7635804, 8797616 9,147,189 9423814 9,704,652 5,310,010
2) CPP (Pensionable Earninga) based on o Per Caplita Costol.... 2.310.08 2,373.53 2,432.00 : 2,492.33 2,554.70 2,618.56 2,684.03 2,761.13
Total Cost of AM CPP.cece 867,359 921,333 1,062 662 1,089,019 1,154 597 1,201,788 1,250,624 1,200,142
3) Emplayer's Conlr. to EL based on a Per Capita Cost of.... 1,014.08 1,080.66 106542 | 108206 1.118.35 1,147.34 1,176.02 1,205.42
Tolal Cosl of A/M E.|. Contributions....... a79,276 419,480 468,838 a1 505,890 536,572 547,867 565,202
3] Division Adminisiration based on a Per Capila Gostal.... 24,308 21,511 24700 | 23800 24,000 24,600 25100 25,700
Tolal Cost of Oiv, Adminlstration........... 9.125.008 8,349,926 10,792,665 10,362.328 | 10,836,800 11280170 11,605,345 12,052,015
5) Cost of Recruitment & Tralning
Per Capita Cost of ehl.... 3,500 3,600 3.500 1,068 1.181 1,18 1,181 1,181
Per Capita Cost of Cadet Training Frogram. (elfec.from 2015/2016). . % = 294 2,578 24978 2078 2,078
Tolal Cost of Recruitment & Trng.: (Per Capita times FTE Utilization| 1,309,035 1,358,585 1,523,325 1,768,081 1,879,880 1,000,773 1,947,886 1,950,363
5) Gost of National Programs (See Addendum ‘&) 1,388 2,488 2411 253 2,530 2541 3544 2,547
Tolal Cos! of Natlonal Programs 517,877 [ 1,063,401 1,118,390 1,147,411 1,166,338 1,185,321 1,194,638
7) Police Dog Sve. Trng. based on a Per Cap. coat of {ell. FN'r, 201ﬁﬁﬁl. - - - 28,178 28178 28,178 28,178
times the Avg. i of Police Dog Teame in F.Y - 0.0 0.30 0.30 0.0 0.30
Tolal Cost of PDS.Tmg.: (Per cap. limes # of PD Teams In F.¥: - = = 8,287 BA53 B,453 8,453 B,483
[TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS - (AM'a & CMs): 16,955,270 17,111,655 22,538,573 23,636,408 24,650,000 25,525,909 26,330,248 26,970,902
INDIRECT COSTS - TCE's, IM's, RESERVIST'S | Ty | | ]
a) Cosl of TCEsAMe Pension (Pensionable |lems) 4,017 2,728 | 10,508 | - | - - - -]
the Avg. # of TCEAM in F.Y... a 12.77% 12.70% 12.70% 12.70% 12.70% 12.70%| 12.70%]
[Tolal Cost of TCE/M Pansion. ... 541 48 1,335 - - - - -
b) CPP for TEEAMs/Res. (Pens. items) basad on a Per cap costof... 2,319.08 2,373.53 2,432 00 2,492.09 2,554.70 2.610.56 2,684.03 2.751.13
Total Gost of CPP: (Par Capita limes FTE Utilization): B14 2,639 - 2331 2300 2,449 2,511 2,573
&) Employer's Cantributions to E.I, basod on a Per cap. coslof... 1,193.86 1,255.48 1,254.30 |,y_sj'i 1,317.80 1,350.74 1,304.51 1,419.12
Total Cost of E.L Contrib.: (Por Capita imes FTE Utilization): 419 1,391 - 1,203 1,233 1263 1,208 1327
d) Div. Admin, on TCE's & IW's based on a Per cap, cast o... - 21611 24,700 23500 24,000 24,600 25,100 25,700
[Total Gost of Div. Admin.: (Por Caplta times FTE Utilization): - - - - - 5 5 %
IFTOTAI. INDIRECT COSTS - (TCE's, IM's & Hﬁ“\l’l&'fﬂ: 1774 4,068,70 36,428 3531 622 313 3808 3,901
dald
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ACMP Municipal Under - § Year Forocast Scheduls 2

Total of All Delachmenls MunlUnder | MuniUnder | MumiUnder | MumiUndar | WMunlUnder | MuniUnder | MuniUnder | WMuniUnder
2016-16 1o 2018-20 Fiscal Eslimates 12/13 Final [ 13714 Pre Final | 14/15 Budgel [15/16 Eslimates|16/17 Estimates|17/18 Estimates|18/10 Estimates| 10/20 Esti
CONTRACT STRENG 42095 42395 436,85 440,95 45195 458,95 465,95 468,95
UTILIZATION|  374.01 0897 436,85 440,95 451,95 458,05 465.95 460.95
[COST ELEMENT GROUP {CEG)
CEG 010 - PAY (Public Service Employees) 535,796 869,947 - - - . - -
CEG 011 - Overtime (Public Service Employees) 4,590 4,085 - - - - - -
CEG 012 - Allowances (Public Service Employses) 41,191 6,456 - . - - -
CEG 013 - Student Programs (Public Service Employsss) - = = = = ps -
CEG 014 - Other (Public Service Emplo; 10,448 17,183 - i z E =
INDIRECT COSTS - PSEs (100% Rocoverable):
A) Cost ol PS Panslons (pensionabla lioms) 494,120 619,894 = = 4 = * i
Panslan Rate o 1277 12.70% 12.70%! 12.70%) 12.70% 12.70% 12.70%!
Tolal Cost ol PSE's Panslon..... 60,006 104,701 - = - = - -
B) Cost of PS CPP for PSEs a3 a Per Cap. Gosl 2,319.08 237353 243200 ] 249239 2,554.70 2,618.56 2,684.03 2,751.13
limas the # of PSES in F.Y, - - - 3 & s . "
Total Cosl of PSE's CPP... - . - = s & < g
C) Cost ol Employer's Conir. lo E.| & 85C for PSE's as a Par Cap. Cost ol... 1,193.86 1,223.71 1,254.30 ‘é!-!ﬂ!_ 1,317.60 1,350.74 1,384.51 1410.12
times the # of PSEs inF.Y... R - 2} & 5 - . z
Total Cost of PSE's E.l, Contribullons..,, . . - [ g B
TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS - PSEs (100% Rocovorable): 6 104,701 - - - = = -
[FoTAL INDIRECT COSTS: [ isesroas]| 17arenza 575,999 ganood|  saseaeez|  2ssusezz] 25334084 26074803 |
NATIONAL PROGRAMS:
Cadet & Recruit Training (See Indirect Costs lem 5) - - - . - - - .
Palice Dog Service Training (See Indirect Costs ltem 7) . . - . % : : K
OTHER INDIRECT COSTS:
Public Complaints Committea (PCC) ELER] 474.58) 383.00 500.4 508.48 im.u[ 508.48, 508.48)
Legal Advisory Services 159,00/ 160,67 164.67 uiu!i 168.01 170.53| 173.08) 175.68
h. d Reporting & ility 110.25 118.31 119.34 1831 118.31 118.31 118.31 118,31
i 0.00 102,00 1023.00 1023,00/ 1023.00) 1023.00 1023.00 1024.0
CONSOLIDATED SERVICES: | |
S5C (Shared Services Canada) 723,00 721,00 721.00 721.00{ 721.00] 721.00) 72100 72100/
Total Cost 1204.86 2497.56 2411.01 2536.22( 2538.00] 254107 254300 2547.47
|DIREDT COSTS 50,518,872 40,0768.234 | £0,242,400 k M.;.l:g.«u 53,417,488 54,016,381 56420214 57,581,604
Less: PSCEQ's 10-14 592,027 897,631 - : - - - -
Leas: CEG 21 & GEG 22 (TCE J Reservists) 57,167 97,432 65,000 | asazr 5,607 87,908 89,225 90,563
Less: OT CEG 31 2 657,706 2,976,784 3,192,000 3181470 3,257,041 8,397,243 3,404,830 3,457,307
| Less: Property CEC's i 659,614 762228 - . 2 5 i 3
Leas: Other Adjustments. 100,048 131,173
|Tetal Direct Costs for Billing Purpose § 456552033 4421007644 |§ A6,955400 § 48325691 |8 50073840 §  51,491231 180 | $ 84,033,643
Total Indirects for Bllling Purposes 16,957,045 17,116,024 22,575,000 24,663,622 25,520,622 26,334,054 26,574,803
| Less: TCE, IM, Resarvists, PDSTC 1,774 4389 0 11,821 12,078 12,166 12268 | 12,354
Tetal Indirect Coata for Billing Purpose & 16955370 17111655 |§ 27575909 5 20,020,181 |§ 24.681.546 § 26,517455|5 26321798(S  26962,449
Total Diract and Indirect Cosls for Bllling Purpose 5 63507303 61322632 § 69531399 § 71953074 S 74755307 |§ 77008687 |3 79247953 (s evgssose
CREDITS 5 9110809 9,332,086 | § = |8 = |5 = |8 = I8 » 18 -
[TOTAL COSTS FOR BILLING PURPOSE $ 54396454  57.090,546 |5  69,531.300 : & TA7SE3NT § 7700 § 79.247953|§ E090E002

PER CAPITAL @ 70%

COLOUR LEGEND
Red = Post Budgel CEGS conlrolled by Unil Commander
Black = Division Conlralled CEG (DCCEG)

Blus latlaring = Standard Object (S0)

GH = tams not includad in Par ilu Calsulation.

dola

15



SCHEDULE 3
NOTES & ASSUMPTIONS for 2015/16

Municipal Contracts
Our terminology for the grouping of General Accounts:
- Cost Element Group (CEG)
- Cost Element (CE)

NOTES ON DIRECT COSTS

CEG 20 & 22 — Temporary Civilian Employees & Casuals and Intelligence Monitors
Temporary Civilian Employees (TCE’s) and Intelligence Monitors (IM’s) categories of
employees are being eliminated effective June 2014. Some of these positions may become
Public Service Employees (PSE). Any amounts for 2015/16 onwards represent estimates for
casual or term PSE employees.

CEG 30 - RCMP Members Pay
CE 110 - Regular Pay
1.50% estimated salary increase for each future year

CEG 221 - Other Services IMIT
The forecast includes a more accurate method for allocating Central Transcription Unit
(CTU) costs. CTU was formed in 2006 to provide 24/7 Helpdesk and Transcription
services. '

CEG 223 — Radio Communications Systems
Information Management & Technology Branch is now working on the new service delivery
model to meet the increasing service demand from the Municipal business line for portable
police radio repair and maintenance. It has been proposed that 6 positions be created (3 in
fiscal 2014/15 and an additional 3 starting fiscal 2015/16). Based on the work orders, these
positions will be cost recoverable from municipalities.

DIRECT COST DEDUCTIONS

These are deducted from the Total Direct Cost for each municipality.

Non-billable costs:
- CEGs 40 & 41 - Transfer Allowances.
- CEGs 60-66 — Relocation Costs.
- CEG 160 - Legal Services.
- CEG 620 - Claims and Compensation Settlements.

2014-05-12 Page 1 of 3
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SCHEDULE 3
" Included in Shared Services Canada (SSC) costs in the Indirect Costs:

- CEG 100 CE 0226 / 0228 / 0230 — Telephone Services.

- CEG 101 — Telephone Services.

- CEG 140 — Computer Communication Services.

- CEG221 CE 2451 - Other Services IMIT.

- CEG 251 — Rental of Communication Equipment.

Included in the Division Administration Costs in the Indirect Costs:
- CEG 32 — Pay Members (Severance, Maternity and Parental allow.).
- CEGs 200-202 - Health Services.

INDIRECT COSTS

With the exception of Member Pension, all costs hsted below are charged on a per FTE basis for
members.
- Member Pension — 22.70% of pensionable cost element items’
- Member Canada Pension Plan - $2,492.39
- Employment Insurance - $1,092.05
- Division Administration - $23,500 — (Please refer to attached schedule 4) - Includes the
following changes:

- Green Timbers estimate @ $900 per FTE.

- Employee Assistance Services (EAS) — The Member/Employee Assistance
Program (M/EAP) program for the Member population ceased operations in
2012/13 and the RCMP has completed its transition to Health Canada EAS
Program. Beginning in 2014/15, a per capita rate based on the MOU with
Health Canada is included in the Divisional Admin rate calculation based on the
total Member and PSE utilization in each division.

- NCO Promotion Unit - In FY 2012/13, a centralized promotion office was
created to administer all NCO promotions across the Force, replacing the current
regional service delivery model. Starting in 2014/15 a per capita rate estimate
multiplied by the total Members utilization in each Division is included in the
Divisional Admin rate calculation.

- A separate calculation is listed for EI and CPP with respect to Reservists (if used).
- Temporary Civilian Employees (TCE’s) and Intelligence Monitors (IM’s) are being
phased out and some positions may become Public Service Employees (PSE).

- Other Indirect Costs:
- Public Complaints Commission (PCC) - $508
- Legal Advisory Services - $166
- Enhanced Reporting & Accountability - $118
- Bstimated Annual Severance — Based on annual liability - $1,023

- Shared Services Canada (SSC) - $721 — SSC provides telecommunication and email
services, networks, data centres, and servers to the RCMP.

2014-05-12 ‘ Page 2 of 3
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SCHEDULKE 3

Training & Recruiting: Forecasted as a national program starting 2015/16 at $2,944 per FTE for
the Cadet Training Program and $1,068 per FTE for recruiting.

Police Dog Service Training: Forecasted as a national program starting 2015/16 based on
established PDS teams in each contract jurisdiction. For 2015/16, the cost is $27,624 per
PDS team. For Lower Mainland District municipalities, this cost will be included in the
Integrated Teams budget.

COSTS BILLABLE AT 100%

The following are some of the items that are billable at 100% per the policing contract:
- Accommodation costs (including occupancy charge) for municipal units in federally
owned buildings.
- PS Support staff costs (including backfills, overtime, severance, pension, CPP, etc.).
- Furniture and fixtures.
- House Furnishings
- Prisoner costs (including mattresses and blankets for cells).
- Kit and Clothing for auxiliaries.

2014-05-09 Page 3 of 3
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Schedule 6
City of XXXXXX

XXXXXX Ave., Municipality Under 15,000
XXXXXX, B.C. Sample Response

June 13, 2014

Mr. Clayton Pecknold

Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services
Ministry of Justice

P.O. Box 9285 Stn Prov Govt,

Victoria, British Columbia

VBW 917
Dear Sir:
Re : Municipal Contract Policing Resource Request — 2015 /2016

This Letter of Approval in Principle is issued to conform to the Federal Treasury Board requirements
to enable the Federal Government o set aside sufficient financial resources to cover their share of
Municipal RCMP contract costs.

The City of XXXXXX anticipates that we will require the addition of ### (#) members to our
detachment strength of ## to bring the total detachment strength to ## (see Schedule 1) for the
2015/2016 fiscal year.

@ 100 % @ 70%
Establishment FTE
Per Capita 163,180 114,226
Contract Cost (excluding Overtime)
Overlime (Includes Reservists)
PDSTC -(if applicable)
Total Per Capita and OT 2015/16 (A)
* If applicable

Municipal Cost

Integrated Teams (B)
RTIC - Real Time Intelligence Centre ({C)
[Accommodation Billed @ 100 % | | )
|PS Recovery Billed @ 100 % | | (E)|
Total Municipal Budget Cap for 2015/16 Total (A+B+C+D+E)

As outlined above, this letter pravides an “approval in principle” and is issued for planning purposes
only. It should not be taken as approval to add the anticipated ## of members to the detachment.
City Council will be meeting on XXX, 2014 to confirm the 2015/2016 budget and the number of
additional human resources. We will inform you of that decision once it is made.

If you have any questions, please call the undersigned at (604) 123-4567.
Thank you.

Yours truly,
John Doe
Treasurer/Deputy Administrator

ce: XXXXXXX RCMP Detachment
Max Xiao, Regional Director, Financial Management & Accounting Operations
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Ladysmith

Public Service Support Staff Estimate

Municipal
Cost
Public Service Support Staff 2.0-FTE
Estimated Salary (see below) $ 109,806
Pension 12.70% 13,945
CPP $ 2,492.39 4,985
El $ 1,285.66 2,571
SSC $ 721.00 1,442
IPA - Isolated Post Allowances (subject to TB decision) -
Total Indirect $ 22,943
Public Service Support Staff Estimate @ 100% $ 132,750
Quarterly Invoice I $ 33,187
lary For

CRO4 $ 50,088.07 - -
CROS $ 54,903.10 2.00 109,806
ASO1 $ 56,041.91 .
AS02 3 60,160.72
Total Estimated Salary 3 109,806
Note:

Salary estimate based on a 1.5% increase per year.
Current PSAC contract expiras on June 20, 2014
Estimale does not include any back fill / casual positions.
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
From: Felicity Adams, Director of Development Services
Date: June 23, 2014
LADYSMITH e No: 3900-03 Zoning Bylaw

Re:  NEW AND UPDATED ZONING BYLAW

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council give first reading and second reading to Bylaws 1858, 1859, 1860 and 1861
cited as follows:

e “Town of Ladysmith Area G and Area H Land Use Regulations Repeal Bylaw 2014,
No. 1858”;

e “Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No. 43), 2014,
No. 18597;

"Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860"; and

e “Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No. 44), 2014,
No. 1861”7,

And refer these bylaws to the public hearing scheduled for July 14, 2014.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

The Zoning Bylaw Project commenced in 2012 with meetings with staff and Council followed
by consultation with the public and stakeholders to obtain early input. New directions were
presented to Council and the community in November 2013. Following a period of extensive
bylaw drafting and the preparation of a new colour zoning bylaw map and updated
Development Permit Area Guidelines, the Zoning Bylaw project is nearing completion.

A special Council meeting was held on May 26, 2014 to present the draft new and updated
Zoning Bylaw, Development Permit Area Guidelines and related amending bylaws - Bylaws
1858, 1859, 1860 and 1861. Approximately 40 members of the public, including members
of the Zoning Bylaw project stakeholder committee, were in attendance. At the regular
Council meeting held on June 16, 2014 staff reported on the changes to the draft Zoning
Bylaw and Development Permit Area Guidelines from this input. Staff was directed to bring
the bylaws forward for consideration of first and second reading.

PURPOSE:
The purpose of this staff report is to present the new and updated Zoning Bylaw for all
properties located within the Town and three additional Bylaws to facilitate related house-

keeping, consequential and transitional amendments for consideration of first and second
reading.

canADA'S
¥ GREENEST
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The current zoning regulations that apply to property within the Town of Ladysmith are:
e Bylaw 1160 - adopted July 1997
e Bylaw 1180 - adopted February 1991
e Bylaw 1020 - adopted February 1987

The stated outcomes of this project were to include:
v" Atechnically sound new Zoning Bylaw with improved clarity and clear regulations.
v" Community understanding of the new regulations.
v" Consistency with the direction of the OCP, as amended by the Town’s Sustainability
Strategy, with no major changes to current land use designations.
v Zoning to support economic development target sectors and the Downtown, as well
as affordable housing options.
Zoning to support the character of development preferred by residents.
New development permit design guidelines. ‘

AN

In addition, specific direction was provided by Council to address certain land use
regulations as noted below.

Direction #1
At its meeting held June 3, 2013, Council provided direction regarding regulations for
shellfish aquaculture and docks which are included in the proposed Zoning Bylaw.

It was moved, seconded and carried that staff be directed to develop regulations for private
moorage and shellfish culture use as part of the Zoning Bylaw project.

Direction #2

At its meeting held December 16, 2013, Council provided specific directions regarding
regulations for coach houses, big box establishments and drive-through service which are
included in the proposed Zoning Bylaw. '

It was moved, seconded and carried that the Zoning Bylaw update include amendments
to permit coach houses in phases with coach houses first permitted in and around the
downtown in the current R-2 and R-2-A zones as follows:
e  With a minimum parcel size of 668 sq. m. where a lane or other secondary access
exists (e.g. corner lot)
e  With a minimum parcel size of 780 sq. m. where a lane does not exist;

And that coach houses also be permitted on larger rural parcels (proposed RU-1, A-1, A-
RR zones);

And that the maximum floor space of a coach house be 60 sq. m. to support Official
Community Plan policy.

It was moved, seconded and carried that the Zoning Bylaw update include amendments
to implement a Town-wide restriction on Big Box retailers with the proposed definition of
a Big Box retailer as a single retail store with a gross floor area exceeding 2,090 sq. m.;

o5 4, EMPLOYERS




And that the amended Zoning Bylaw incorporate a means to permit expansion of
existing grocery stores.

It was moved, seconded and carried that the Zoning Bylaw update include amendments
to implement a Town-wide prohibition on new drive-through operations of all types.

Direction #3
At its meeting held March 17, 2014, Council provided directions regarding zoning for
schools which is included in the proposed OCP amendment and Zoning Bylaw.

That Council direct staff to:

1. Prepare an Official Community Plan amendment to add new policies regarding school
planning as outlined in the report from the Director of Development Services dated
March 17, 2014; and

2. Include in the new Zoning Bylaw regulations to address:

e | imiting community care facility use at the Ecole Davis Road School site and the
adjacent P-1 zoned properties (5 lots)

e Requiring a minimum parcel size of 2.0 hectares (5 acres) for a school site

e Limiting the number of buildings and associated site coverage for school sites to the
number of buildings that are currently in place

Motion carried.

SCOPE OF WORK:

The current stage of the Zoning Bylaw Project is to present Bylaws 1858, 1859, 1860 and
1861 for consideration of first and second reading. All current zoning bylaw amendment
applications that could be completed have been considered by Council. Any in-stream or
new zoning bylaw amendment applications will be considered as an amendment to the new
Zoning Bylaw once adopted.

Bylaw 1858 - Transitional Amendment

The purpose of Bylaw No. 1858 is to repeal land use regulations for areas formerly within
Electoral Area “G” and Electoral Area “H” of the CVRD that will now be covered by the Town’s
Zoning Bylaw. These areas include Woods Islands, lands within the Agricultural Land
Reserve located in south Ladysmith, and the forestry lands in the Holland Creek Area.

Bylaws 1859 and 1861 - Housekeeping and Consequential OCP Amendments
The purpose of Bylaw No. 1859 is to amend the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw by

updating the land use designations in the OCP, the Holland Creek Area Plan and the South
Ladysmith Area Plan to better reflect actual use, new and updated zoning and community
vision objectives; adding new and updated policies to the OCP.

The purpose of Bylaw No. 1861 is to amend the OCP by adding new and updated

Development Permit Areas (DPA), DPA guidelines and a colour DPA map to support the
Town’s Community Vision.

Bylaw 1860 - New and Updated Zoning Bylaw
The purpose of Bylaw No. 1860 is to adopt a new and updated Zoning Bylaw for all
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properties located within the Town of Ladysmith.

If approved Bylaw No. 1860 will replace the current Zoning Bylaw 1160 (and Bylaws 1020
and 1180) with a new and updated Zoning Bylaw. The Bylaw affects all properties in the
Town by establishing zones and regulations for the use and the density of use of land,
building and structures; regulating the siting, size and dimensions of uses, building and
structures; and regulating parcel sizes, off-street parking and loading and screening and
landscaping.

In general terms, the Zoning Bylaw introduces new regulations affecting accessory buildings,
coach house use, perimeter wall height, home-based business use, flexible live-work options
in the downtown, urban agriculture, shipping containers, large format retail, drive-through
service access, bicycle parking, and landscaping and screening. New zones are introduced
for small lot residential, natural parks, marine harvesting, marine conservation, agriculture
and forestry uses.

ALTERNATIVES:

That Council defer consideration of first and second reading and provide further direction to
staff regarding the proposed Zoning Bylaw and related amendment Bylaws. The scheduled
public hearing date of july 14, 2014 would change.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;

The Zoning Bylaw project has been funded by a grant. The current agreement is that grant
funding for the project will be completed by June 30, 2014. It is anticipated that the grant
will be fully spent by that date.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
Legal review has been completed and edits have been made to the Zoning Bylaw as
presented with this staff report.

A Public Hearing is required to be held. The public hearing is the statutory opportunity for
anyone who considers their interest in property to be affected by the proposed Bylaws 1858,
1859, 1860 and 1861. to be given reasonable opportunity to be heard in person or by
written submission respecting matters contained in the Bylaws. The public hearing has
been scheduled for July 14, 2014.

At the regular Council meeting held on June 16, 2014 staff was directed to refer Bylaws
1859 and 1861 to Stz’uminus First Nation and Bylaw 1859 to Nanaimo-Ladysmith School
District #68. Comments by July 11, 2014 have been requested.

Prior to third reading of the Zoning Bylaw, it will be required to be approved by the Minister
of Transportation and Infrastructure as it affects land and improvements located within 800
metres of a controlled access highway.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
The community’s vision, as outlined in the Official Community Plan and the report from the
Community Visioning Initiative, has been considered in the development of the new and

* GREENEST
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updated Zoning Bylaw.

In addition, there have been several opportunities for public input and feedback during the
development of the Zoning Bylaw, including with the general public, Advisory Planning
Commission and the Stakeholders group in 2012, 2013 and 2014. A dedicated website has
been used to post materials and reports from the community consultation processes. Most
recently there was a special Council meeting held on May 26, 2014 to present the draft
bylaws and feedback from that meeting was considered in revisions to the draft Zoning
Bylaw and Development Permit Area Guidelines. The Advisory Design Panel provided input
into the revised DPAs. Feedback from all of these sessions has been considered in the
development of the new and updated Zoning Bylaw and related bylaws.

In addition to access on the Town’s website, a two week drop-in opportunity is planned at
the Development Services office and Frank Jameson Community Centre prior to the public
hearing.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:

Staff in the Infrastructure Services Department, including the Building Inspector, and the
Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture have been involved in the development of the
proposed Zoning Bylaw.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

The development of the Zoning Bylaw, related bylaws and the holding of the public hearing
is within the current work program of the Development Services department, as supported
by consulting resources.

It is anticipated that there could be fine tuning of the new Zoning Bylaw following its
adoption. It has been the experience of other communities that the adopting of a
comprehensive new bylaw can require tweaking or correction once it is used by staff,
property owners and the development community.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

The Town has invested a tremendous amount of time and resources into the development of
several overarching, sustainability-focused planning documents, including a new Official
Community Plan (OCP) in 2003, a national award-winning Community Vision and
Sustainability Strategy in 2008, a Community Energy Plan in 2009, and the Sustainability
Action Plan in 2013. This comprehensive review and update of the Zoning Bylaw is a
Council priority to implement the visions, values and goals of these overarching municipal
plans.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
The completion of the update of the Zoning Bylaw is one of Council’s strategic priorities.

SUMMARY:

The development of the Zoning Bylaw has taken place over the past two years. There have
been many opportunities for the public to be engaged. Current plans and policies and public
input have helped to develop the Zoning Bylaw and related bylaws. It is

® GREENEST
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recommended that Bylaws 1858, 1859, 1860 and 1861 be given first reading énd second
reading and referred to public hearing on July 14, 2014.

| concur with the recommendation.

Ruth\i\dg&gity Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
None.

¢ 2014
/CANADA'S
GREENEST
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1858

A bylaw to repeal land use regulations for areas formerly within
Electoral Area “G” and Electoral Area “H” of the Cowichan Valley Regional District

WHEREAS by the issuance of Supplementary Letters Patent, the boundaries of the Town
of Ladysmith were extended to include certain areas formerly within Electoral Area “G” and
Electoral Area “H” of the Cowichan Valley Regional District (Regional District);

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Supplementary Letters Patent and the provisions of the
Local Government Act, the Regional District’s Electoral Area “G” Zoning Bylaw 1180,
1988 and Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 1020, 1986 continue to apply to those
areas, and may be amended or repealed with respect to those areas, as if it had been enacted
by the Municipal Council;

AND WHEREAS after the close of the Public Hearing and with due regard to the reports
received, the Municipal Council considers it advisable to repeal Bylaw 1180 and Bylaw
1020;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

REPEAL OF BYLAWS

() “Electoral Area “G” Zoning By-law 1180, 1988, and all its amendments, as it
applies to areas within the Town of Ladysmith, are hereby repealed.

@ “The Cowichan Valley Regional District Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No.
1020, 19867, and all its amendments, as it applies to areas within the Town of
Ladysmith, are hereby repealed.

CITATION

3) This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Town of Ladysmith Area G and Area
H Land Use Regulations Repeal Bylaw 2014, No. 1858”.

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of

READ A SECOND TIME on the day of

PUBLIC HEARING held pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act

on the day of
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of

ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1859

A bylaw to amend "Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2003, No. 1488"

WHEREAS the Municipal Council has accepted the report “A community vision for a
sustainable west coast town” (Community Vision);

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council is intending to adopt a new Zoning Bylaw to
implement the Official Community Plan and Community Vision which requires

consequential amendments to the Official Community Plan;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Local Government Act, the Municipal Council is
empowered to amend the Official Community Plan;

AND WHEREAS after the close of the Public Hearing and with due regard to the reports
received, the Municipal Council considers it advisable to amend “Official Community Plan
Bylaw, 2003, No. 1488,

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

@) The “Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488 is hereby amended as set out
in Schedule A to this Bylaw.

CITATION

2) This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003,
No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No.43), 2014, No. 1859”.

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of
READ A SECOND TIME on the day of

PUBLIC HEARING held pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act

on the : day of
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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Bylaw No. 1859 ‘ Page 2

Schedule A of Bylaw 1859

§)) Schedule “A” entitled “Town of Ladysmith Community Plan” is amended as
follows:

(a) Section 3.6 - Community Facilities and Services is amended by adding three
new policies to section 3.6.3 as follows:

“10. Support schools within walking and cycling distance of neighbourhoods
located north and south of Holland Creek.
11. Support the provision of enhanced district learning opportunities,
including French immersion education, at Ladysmith schools.
12. Encourage the design of school grade configurations that minimize the
number of school transitions that students experience during their
school life.”

and renumber accordingly.
(b) Section 3.8.1 - Land Use Designations is amended as follows:

i) In the paragraph titled General Commercial, replace “4,000 square
metres” with “2,090 square metres” as the maximum floor area for any
one commercial use;

ii)  Inthe paragraph titled Highway Commercial, replace “2,000 square
metres” with “500 square metres” as the maximum floor area for any
one commercial use;

iii) In the paragraph titled Local Commercial, replace “500 square metres”
with “200 square metres” as the maximum floor area for any one
commercial use; and

iv)  In the paragraph titled “Single Family Residential”, add reference to
secondary housing (e.g. detached secondary suite) following the
sentence “Secondary suites and home-based business uses are also
permitted when located within a single family dwelling.” as follows:

“Secondary housing is permitted in the Single Family Residential

designation. Criteria for secondary suites, secondary housing and

home-based business uses are contained in the Zoning Bylaw.”
(c) Table 8 —Density Summary is amended by deleting Note 5 in its entirety.
(d) “Map 1 - Land Use” is amended by:

i)  Placing the Parks and Open Space Land Use Designation on the
properties as shown on Maps 1 to 4 below.

ii)  Placing the Institutional Land Use Designation on the properties as shown
on Maps 3 to 6 below.

iii) Placing the Industrial Land Use Designation on the properties as shown
on Map 6 below.

iv)  Placing the Single Family Residential Land Use Designation on the
properties as shown on Maps 6 to 10 below.

v)  Placing the Local Commercial Land Use Designation on the properties as
shown on Map 10 below.
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Bylaw No. 1859

PARKS AND

PARKS AND
OPEN SPACES

OPEN SPACES

PARKS AND
OPEN SPACES [\

{~1
)

PARKS AND
OPEN SPACES

PARKS AND

OPEN SPACES

PARKS AND
OPEN SPACES

PARKS AND
OPEN SPACES

SINGLE FAMILY |
RESIDENTIAL

INSTITUTIONALY

N
N
W

\.
N
RN
BN
R
N

XV
R
R
s
X
N

.S
R
Tk
R

<
N

N
N

7

X
NN
A
PR
RN

.
T

s,

33



Bylaw No. 1859

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

€95} 8o |5
=

w | 2 ]

551 | 5§s )

HALLIDAY PLACE

E

50 | 35 ssaToq

33| gl a1 s\ %
~

2

SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

0 o W

ajs]safs]e

s G

SINGLE FAMILY|[ |
RESIDENTIAL |

JE 8 S R UL e,

PRI AVERDE

N
EHAN

; 5
S8

T T
‘1'.'3 ,\‘v\_:‘j .‘ N

Rh R

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

LOCAL
COMMERCIAL

2) Schedule “C”, entitled Holland Creek Area Plan, is amended as follows:

(a) Figure 4 — Parks & Open Space, Land Use & Circulation is deleted in its
entirety and replaced with “Figure 4 — Parks & Open Space, Land Use &
Circulation” which is attached to and forms part of this Bylaw.

3) Schedule “D”, entitled “South Ladysmith Area Plan” is amended as follows:

(a) Map 2 - Land Use & Transportation is amended by:

i) Adding “Institutional” to the Legend, and
ii) Replacing land use designations as show on Map 11 below.
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R
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“Figure 4 — Parks & Open Space, Land Use & Circulation”
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1860

A bylaw to regulate the use of land, buildings and structures; require off-street parking and
loading spaces; and establish standards for the provision of landscaping and screening,.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Local Government Act, the Municipal Council is empowered to
adopt a Zoning Bylaw;

AND WHEREAS after the close of the Public Hearing and with due regard to the reports
received, the Municipal Council considers it advisable to repeal "Town of Ladysmith
Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 1160" and adopt "Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No.
1860";

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

(1) “Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 1160” and all its amendments are
repealed.

2) “Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 18607, as follows is adopted:
(a) Schedule A — Zoning Bylaw Text, and
(b) Schedule B - Zoning Bylaw Map.

CITATION

3) This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw
2014, No. 1860”.

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of

READ A SECOND TIME on the day of

PUBLIC HEARING held pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act

on the day of
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of
APPROVED BY THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORTATION AND
INFRASTRUCTURE on the day of
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1861

A bylaw to amend "Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2003, No. 1488"

WHEREAS the Municipal Council has accepted the report “A community vision for a
sustainable west coast town” (Community Vision);

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council wishes to implement the form and character
preferences of the Ladysmith community as expressed through the Community Vision
which requires amendments to the Official Community Plan;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Local Government Act, the Municipal Council is
empowered to designate Development Permit Areas, describe special conditions or

objectives to justify the designation and to specify guidelines;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Local Government Act, the Municipal Council is
empowered to amend the Official Community Plan;

AND WHEREAS afier the close of the Public Hearing and with due regard to the reports
received, the Municipal Council considers it advisable to amend “Official Community Plan
Bylaw, 2003, No. 1488”;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

1 The “Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488” is hereby amended as set out
in Schedule A to this Bylaw.

CITATION

(2)  This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003,
No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No.44), 2014, No. 18617,

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of

READ A SECOND TIME on the day of

PUBLIC HEARING held pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Act

on the day of
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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Bylaw No. 1861 Page 2
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Schedule A of Bylaw 1861

Schedule “A” entitled “Town of Ladysmith Community Plan” is amended as
follows:

(a) Section 3.8.5 - Development Permit Areas is deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:
“3.8.5 Development Permits

Development Permits may be required as authorized by the Local
Government Act and designated by this Plan. Development Permit Areas are
designated on OCP Map 2 — Development Permit Areas. Special Conditions,
objectives and guidelines are provided in Schedule A.1 of this Plan.
Development Permits may vary other Bylaw requirements as permitted by the
Local Government Act and provided for in the Guidelines.

(b) Map 2 - Development Permit Areas is deleted in its entirety and replaced with
“Map 2 - Development Permit Areas” which is attached to and forms part of this
Bylaw.

Schedule “A.1” entitled “Development Permit Areas” as attached to and forming

part of this Bylaw is added in its entirety following “Schedule “A” entitled “Town of
Ladysmith Community Plan” and renumber accordingly.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1863

A bylaw to amend the Water Services Rates of the Town of Ladysmith.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter, The Municipal Council may, by bylaw, regulate,
prohibit and impose requirements in relation to municipal services:

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

Amendment

1. Schedule “A” of “Waterworks Regulations Bylaw 1999, No. 1298, Amendment Bylaw 2014,
No. 1821 is hereby replaced with the attached Schedule A.

2. The provisions of this bylaw shall become effective for the third quarter billing of 2014.

3. Remove section 32 (1) and 32 (2) Penalties & Enforcement and add Fines to Schedule “A”.

4. Amend section 36 (2) (a) with the following:
“For the billing period for which no reading is taken, be calculated on the consumption for the
same billing period of the previous years.”

Citation

4. This bylaw may be cited as "Town of Ladysmith Waterworks Regulations Bylaw 1999, No.
1298, Amendment Bylaw 2014, No. 1863".

READ A FIRST TIME onthe 16" day of June, 2014
READ A SECOND TIME onthe 16 day of June, 2014
READ A THIRD TIME onthe 16 day of June, 2014
ADOPTED on the

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Director of Corporate Services (S. Bowden)
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Schedule "A"
TOWN OF LADYSMITH
Waterworks Regulations Bylaw 1999, No. 1298, Amendment Bylaw 2014, No. 1863

1 METERED SINGLE UNIT DWELLING
Per billing quarter:

Base Rate, including consumption to 25 m? $ 23.50
Next 26 m* to 50 m* $ 055 Perm®
Next 51 m®to 75 m® $ 065 Perm’
Next 76 m” to 100 m* y $ 080 Perm’
Next 101 m* to 125 m® $ 1.05 Perm’
Over 126 m® $ 140 Perm’
2 METERED SERVICE - all other users
Per billing quarter:
Base Rate, including consumption to 25 m* $ 23.50
Over 26 m? $ 050 Perm’
3 NON-METER SERVICE
Per billing quarter: $ 41.60  Perunit

4 SERVICE CONNECTION RATES

Where a service connection has not been previously provided to a parcel but where
the Public Waterworks system front or abuts the parcel:

(A) 19 mm (3/4") service connection including
meter, meter box, meter setter, check values,
shut-off valves and other related appurtenances: $2,400 per connection

(B} Larger than 19 mm (3/4") shail be at cost, but
no less than: $2,400 per connection

Where a service connection has been previously provided to a parcel:

(C) service connection including meter, meter
box, meter setter, check values, shut-off valves
and other related appurtenances and is the
requested size: $100 per connection

(D) upgrading of that service is size including
installation of a water meter, meter box, meter
setter, check valves, shut-off valve and any other
related appurtenances shall be at cost, but not
less than: $2,400 per connection

5 FINES
Every person who violates any provision of this
bylaw shall be guilty of an offence punishable on
summary conviction and shall be liable to a fine or
to imprisonment for not more than 6 months, or
both. Each day that a violation of the provisions of
this bylaw occurs, exist or is permitted to occur or
exists, shall constitute a separate offense. $ 2,000 peroffence

Effective for the third quarter billing of 2014.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1864

A bylaw to amend the Sanitary Sewer Rates Byiaw 1999, No. 1299 of the Town of Ladysmith.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter, The Municipal Council may, by bylaw, regulate,
prohibit and impose requirements in relation to municipal services:

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting
assembled enacts as follows:

Amendment

1. Schedule “A” of “Sanitary Sewer Rates Bylaw 1999, No. 1299 is hereby replaced with the
attached Schedule “A”.

2. Remove Section 5 Penalty.

3. The provisions of this bylaw shall become effective and be in force for the third quarter billing
of 2014.

Citation

4. This bylaw may be cited as "Town of Ladysmith Sanitary Sewer Rates Bylaw 1999, No. 1299,
Amendment Bylaw 2014, No. 1864".

READ A FIRST TIME on the 16th dayof June, 2014
READ A SECOND TIME on the 16th dayof June, 2014
READ A THIRD TIME on the 16th  day of June, 2014
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (R. Hutchins)

Director of Corporate Services (S. Bowden)
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SCHEDULE “A”

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

Sewer Rates Bylaw 1999, No. 1299, Amendment Bylaw 2014, No. 1864

SCHEDULE OF RATES

CLASSIFICATION

Sewer Charge Per Month

Residences or Apartments:

For each Dwelling Unit

$ 15.00 per unit

Motels & Auto Courts: Premises of owner or operator $15.00
For each rental unit $2.30
Mobile Home Parks: Public rest rooms and/or service rooms $15.00
For each mobile home with sewer connection $15.00
Hotels: Owners or managers quartérs $15.00
Per apartment for rent $15.00
Per room for rent $2.30
Beer Parlours, Pubs, Licenced For each separately licenced area $32.35
Cabarets & Lounges:
Cafes, Restaurants & Dining Rooms: $32.35
Offices, Shops and Stores: Per office, store & store unit not otherwise specified $15.00
Store{s) and Suites(s) combined: Per store unit $15.00
Per suite $15.00
Stores(s) and Office(s) combined: Per store unit $15.00
per office unit $15.00
Office Building: per office unit $15.00
Laundry or Laundromat: $52.00
Services Stations and Garages: Without car wash $15.00
With car wash $34.65
Public or Social Club with licenced bar: $32.35
Church Hall, Public Hall or Lodge Room $11.60
Hospitals & Nursing Homes per bed $7.00
Schools per classroom, auditorium or office $15.00

Effective for the third quarter billing of 2014.
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LADYSMITH

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Audited

45



STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of the management of the Town
of Ladysmith and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting standards. ‘

In carrying out its responsibilities, management maintains appropriate systems of internal and administrative -
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in accordance with proper
authorization, that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded, and that financial information produced
is refevant and reliable.

The Council of the Town met with management and the external auditors to review the consolidated financial
statements and to discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval
of the consolidated financial statements.

MNP LLP as the Municipality's appointed external auditors, have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Auditor's report is addressed to the Mayor and members of Council and appears on the
following page. Their opinion is based upon an examination conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing
Standards, performing such tests and other procedures as they consider necessary to obtain reasonable
assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement and present fairly the
financial position and results of the Municipality in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards. ‘

Ruth Malli, CGA™~—
Chief Administration Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Repdrt

To the Mayor and Council of the Town of Ladysmith:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Town of Ladysmith, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the consolidated statements of
operations, cash flows and changes in net financial assets and related schedules for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Staterhents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control ‘as management
determines is nécessary to enable the preparation of éonsolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We ‘
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian general!y accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts ‘and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion )

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Town of Ladysmith as at December 31, 2013 and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Other Matter
The comparative figures were audited by another auditor who issued an unqualified opinion dated May 13, 2013.

Nanaimo, British Columbia s

April 28, 2014 T ‘ _ Chartered Accountants

96 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, British Columbia, V9R OE2, Phone: (250) 753-8251
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013
2013 2012
Financial Assels
Cash and short term deposits (Note 3) $ 12,591,022 $ 11,439,569
Accounts receivable (Note 4) ' 2,900,746 2,663,634
15,491,768 14,103,203
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) 1,562,524 1,239,606
Post-employment benefits (Note 6) 225,800 247,200
Deferred revenue (Note 7) ' 229,240 212,738
Refundable deposits and other (Note 8) 396,242 416,637
Restricted reserves - other (Note 9) 474,213 463,832
Dewelopment cost charge resene (Note 9) 1,517,690 1,489,935
Federal gas tax resene (Note'11) 854,988 675,377
Obligations under capital lease (Note 12 & Schedule 1) 575,566 156,274
Debenture debt (Note 13 & Schedule 1) 3,476,347 3,711,148
9,312,710 8,612,747
Net Financial Assets 6,179,058 5,490,456
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule X & X) 77,877,676 77,375,354
Prepaids ’ 118,649 98,834
Inventory 84,075 83,642
78,080,400 77,557,830
Accumulated Surplus (Note 18) ‘ ; $ 84,259,458 $ 83,048,286

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)
Subsequent Events (Note 22)

49

See accompanying notes fo the consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 .

Rewenue

Taxes - (Schedule Ill)
Fees and charges
General (Schedule IV)
Sewer (Schedule IV)
Water (Schedule V)
Investment Income
Penalty and interest on tax
Grants (Schedule VII)
Donations and contributed property
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Dewelopment fees
Local area improvements
Gas tax funds utilized

Expenses

General government senices
Protective senices
Transportation senices
Garbage senvices

Cemetery senvices

Dewelopment senices
Recreation and cultural senices
Parks operation senices

Seéwer

Water

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated Surplus - end of year

Séc_a accompanying notes fo the consolidated financial statements.
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Budget
2013 2013 2012
(Note 19)

$ 8,286,919 $ 8,290,099 $ 7,837,932
1,735,914 1,698,455 1,684,808
718,265 673,272 680,043
676,576 687,600 694,452
121,411 75,000 112,183
123,620 110,000 117,983
1,375,509 1,313,051 1,871,963
24,636 261,000 168,506
(43,587) - 14,309
108,075 108,075 108,075
8,922 8,921 8,922
81,225 273,550 54,705
13,217,485 13,499,023 13,353,881
2,103,832 2,297,005 2,234,109
1,820,194 1,857,993 1,655,013
2,138,016 2,293,007 2,115,007
462,974 474,931 465,798
23,953 42,073 38,073
557,198 1,094,544 522,925
2,218,835 2,281,987 2,274,371
867,892 887,694 867,734
983,611 - 1,426,309 909,460
829,808 1,763,331 798,194
12,006,313 14,418,874 11,880,684
1,211,172 (919,851) 1,473,197
83,048,286 83,048,286 81,575,089
$ 84,259,458 $ 82,128,435 $ 83,048,286
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

2013 2012
Operations
Annual Surplus 1,211,172 $ 1,473,197
Less non-cash items:
Amortization o 2,528,284 2,421,478
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets 43,587 (14,309)
Actuarial adjustments on debt debenture ‘ (68,475) (59,783)
Contribution to land - (89,684)
Changes in non-cash items: ,
Accounts receivable (237,112) (157,614)
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and post-employment 301,618 (239,771)
benefits
Inventory and prepaid expenses (20,247) (52,746)
- Deferred revenues 16,502 (543,580)
Restricted resernes 10,381 23,603
Federal gas tax resere 179,611 205,492
Development cost charge resene 27,755 286,512
Refundable deposits and other (20,395) (17,802)
Net increase (decrease) in cash from operations 3,972,681 3,234,993
Capital Transactions
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 129,986 37,309
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (2,735,453) (2,601,214)
(2,605,467) (2,563,905)
Financing
Proceeds from new debt - 1,000,000
Repayment of long-term debt (215,761) (166,055)
Net (Decrease) Increase in cash from financing {215,761) 833,945
Increase in Cash and Short Term Deposits 1,151,453 1,505,033
Cash and Short Term Deposits - Beginning of Year 11,439,569 9,934,536
Cash and Short Term Deposits - End of Year 12,591,022

51

$ 11,439,569

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

’ FORv THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Loss (gain) on sale of tangible capital assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets

Decrease (Increase) in inventories

Decrease (Increase) in prepaids

Change in Net Financial Assets

Net Financial Assets (Net Debt), beginning of year

Net Financial Assets (Net Debt), end of year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Budget
2013 2013 2012
{Note 19)
$ 1211172 % (919,851) $  1,473/197
(3,204,179) (9,473,641) (2,777,530)
2,528,284 2,270,000 2,421,478
43,587 - (14,309)
"~ 129,986 - 37,310
(433) - 7,854
(19,815) - (60,600)
688,602 (8,123,492) 1,087,400
5,490,456 4,403,056
$ 6,179,058

$ 5,490,456
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

General

The Town of Ladysmith was incorporated under the provisions of the British Columbia Municipal Act.
Its principal activities are the provision of local government services in the Town, as governed by the
Community Charter and the Local Government Act.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
They provide detailed information and explain the significant accounting and reporting policies and
principles that form the basis of these statements. They also provide relevant supplementary
information and explanations which cannot be expressed in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

It is the Town's policy to follow Canadian leblic sector accounting standards for local governments
and to apply such principles consistently. The financial resources and operations of the Town have
been consolidated for financial statement purposes and include the accounts of all of the funds of the
Town.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The
accrual basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon the receipt of goods and services or the
creation of an obligation to pay.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
changes in fund balances and financial position of the Town. These consolidated financial
statements consolidate the following operations:

General Revenue Fund Reserve Fuhd General Capital Fund
Water Revenue Fund Water Capital Fund
Sewer Revenue Fund Sewer Capital Fund

(b) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised of all the funds, agencies, local boards, and
committees of the Council which are controlled by the Town. Control is defined as the power to
govern the financial and reporting policies of another organization with the expected benefits or risk of
loss to the Town. The controlled organizations are consolidated after adjusting their accounting
policies to a basis consistent with the accounting policies of the Town. Interfund and intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The controlled organizations include DL 2016
Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Town.

53
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(c)  Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified
according to their functional use. Cost includes all amounts that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. Donated assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value upon acquisition.- Certain tangible capital assets for which historical cost
information is not available have been recorded at current fair market values discounted by a relevant
inflation factor. Certain assets are disclosed at a nominal value as the determination of current fair
market value was not available. The Town does not capitalize interest charges as part of the cost of
its tangible capital assets. : ‘

Tangible capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful life, with a half-year's provision in
the year of acquisition, on the straight-line method at the following annual rates:

General Tangible Capital Assets

Land Indefinite
Land Improvements 15 to 75 years
Buildings : 25 to 40 years
Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles 5 to 60 years

Engineering Structures :
Roads and Sidewalks 20 to 75 years

Storm and Sewer - - 25to 75 years
Water , 20 to 80 years

Constructions in progress contain capital projects underway but not yet complete or put into use.
Once put into use, the asset will be amortized based on the above annual rates for the applicable .
category of work performed.

Certain assets have historical or cultural value including works of art, historical documents as well as
historical and cultural artifacts that are not recognized as tangible capital assets because a
reasonable estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be made.
Intangibles, Crown lands and other natural resources are not recognized as tangible capital assets.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition., ‘

54
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Restricted Reserves and Deferred Revenues

Receipts which are restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as restricted reserves. When qualifying expenses are incurred,
restricted reserves are brought into revenue at equal amounts, in" accordance with Revenue
Recognition policy 2 (h). These revenues are comprised of the amounts shown in Note 9.

Revenues received from non-government sources in advance of expenses which will be incurred in a
later period are deferred until the associated purchase or expense is incurred.

(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial ‘statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the collectability of accounts
receivable, deferred charges, accrued liability, post-employment benefits, provisions for contingencies
and amortization rates, useful lives and salvage values for determining capital asset values. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in operations in the
period of settlement.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to the ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All
other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Rental payments under operating leases are expensed as incurred.

(h) Revenue Recognition

Taxation revenues are recognized at the time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year.
Fees and charges revenue are recognized when the services are rendered. Investment income is

accrued as earned. |

Other revenues are recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of the agreement, when
the amounts are measurable and when collection is reasonably assured.
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| TOWN OF LADYSMITH |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Significant Acco_uhting Policies (continued)

The Town recognizes a government transfer as revenue when the transfer is authorized and all
eligibility criteria, 'if any, have been met. Grants and donations are recognized in the financial
statements in the period which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, eligibility criteria are met,
and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. A government transfer with stipulations giving
rise to. an obligation that meets the definition of a liability is recognized as a liability (deferred
revenue). In such circumstances, the Town recognizes the revenue as the liability is settled.

Deferred revenue represents user charges and other fees which have been collected, for which the
related services have yet to be provided. These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are provided.

(i) Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during the year,
together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net financial assets for
the year. ' :

() Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on an average cost
basis.

(k) Recenf Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2010, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) issued PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated
Sites to establish recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for liabilities associated with
the remediation of contaminated sites. The new section defines activities included in a liability for
remediation, establishes when to recognize and how to measure a liability for remediation, and
provides the related financial statement presentation and disclosure requirements. PS 3260 is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2014. The Town does not expect the adoption
of the new section to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and short term deposits were comprised as follows:

2012

2013

Cash $ 11839080 $ 10695810

Short term deposits 751,933 743,759
$ 12501022 $ 11,439,569

Short term deposits consist of short term investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of B.C. money

market fund. The market value is equal to the carrying value.

Included in cash and short term deposits are the following restricted amounts that can only be expended

in accordance with the terms of the restricted reserves.

2013 2012
Restricted reserves - other $ - 474213 § 463,831
Federal gas tax reserve . 854,988 675,377
Dewelopment cost charges reserve 1,495,960 1,489,936
Total restricted cash $ 2,825,161 $ 2,629,144
Accounts Receivable :
2013 2012
Property taxes ' $ 1136828 $ 1,230,701
Other government _ 427,359 563,637
User fees and other : 1,294,748 834,787
Dewelopment cost charges 21,730 -
Deweloper receivables A - 16,253 29,071
Employee recejvables S 3,828 5,438
$ 2,900,746 $ 2,663,634

Development cost charges (DCC's) are collécted on the approval of subdivision or the issuance of a
building permit. These funds assist the Town in constructing capital improvements directly or indirectly
related to the development. ‘Development cost charges represent funds due from developers within two
years and are secured by irrevocable standby letters of credit. No interest is charged on these

outstanding installments.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2013 2012
General $ 1241444 $ 933,929
Other governments -1 181
Salaries and wages 161,707 129,634
Contractor holdbacks ' 118,339 142,727
Accrued interest 40,923 33,135

$ 1,562,524 § 1,239,806

Post-Employment Benefits

The Town provides compensated absences to its employees to a maximum of 120 days. The Town
also allows employees to defer unused vacation without any maximum. Any deferred vacation time
remaining at retirement or termination is paid out at that time. The amount recorded for these benefits
is based on an actuarial evaluation done by an independent firm using a projected benefit actuarial
valuation method prorated on services. The last actuarial valuation was calculated at October 31, 2012
and has been extrapolated to Decémber 31, 2013. The change in the liability in the financial statements

in respect of obligations under the plan amounts to ($21,300). (2012 - $5,800).

The accrued post-employment benefits are as follows:

2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $ 247,200 $ 253,000
Current senice costs 28,800 28,500
Benefits paid. {(5,000) (63,000)
Actuarial (gain)/loss " (45,100) 28,700
Balance, end of year $ 225,900 $ 247,200

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Town’s post-employment benefits are

as follows: _ :
, 2013 2012
Discount Rate ' - 3.90% 3.40%

Expected Inflation Rate and Wage & Salary Increases 2.50% 2.50%
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Deferred Revenue

Licence fees & charges
Rental payments

Prepaid property tax
Subdivision tree prepayment
Recreation prepayment
-Utilities

Other

Refundable Deposits and Other

Deweloper performance deposits
Damage deposits
Other

59

2013 2012
1,814 5,016
26,701 22,229
101,590 89,838
35,105 38,808
24,676 17,992
31,857 33,711
7,497 5,144 .
229,240 212,738
2013 2012
198,932 215,467
195,580 199,685
- 1,730 1,485
396,242 416,637
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Restricted Reserves and Development Cost Charges Reserve

Restricted reserves include Development Cost Charges (DCC's) which are charged to developers and
utilized for infrastructure development. There are two reserves, LRCA Capital and B&G Capital for the _
replacement of specmc bUIldIng components located at 630 2" Avenue and 220 High Sireet.

. Balance Balance
Description Dec. 31, 2012 Interest Contributions Expenditures  Dec. 31,2013
DCC - Water $ 218,156 $ 2757 § 22,445 % -3 243,358
DCC - Parks 238,605 2,889 17,230 - 258,724
DCC - Roads 577,748 6,409 44,191 (108,075) 520,273
DCC - Sewer 126,187 1,543 32,277 - 160,007
DCC - Storm 329,239 3,933 2,156 - 335,328
. 1,489,935 17,531 118,299 (108,075) 1,517,690
Gas Tax 675,377 8,216 252,620 (81,225) 854,988
Parking 74132 903 - ; 75,035
Green Streets 1,394 17 oo - 1,411
Amphitheatre 13,300 - 167 600 - 14,067
Trolley - 4 4773 (4,777) -
LRC - Capital 363,027 114 11,314 (7,968) 366,487
B&G - Capital 11,979 170 5,064 - 17,213
463,832 1,375. 21,751 (12,745) 474213
TOTAL $ 2629144 $ 27,122 § 392670 3 (202,045) $ 2,846,891

Financial Instruments

The Town as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's
opinion the Town is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these financial
instruments, except as otherwise disclosed. Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these flnanmal
instruments approx1mates their carrying values.
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12.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Federal Gas Tax Reserve

Gas Tax funding is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is established by a
funding agreement between the Town and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. - Gas Tax
funding may be used towards designated public transit, community energy, water, wastewater, solid
waste and capacity building projects, as specified in the funding agreements. The funds are recorded
on the financial statements as a restricted reserve.

2013 2012
Opening balance of unspent funds ' -$ 675,377 S 469,885
Add: Amounts reéeived during the year » : 252,620 - 252,714
Interest earned 8,216 A 7,483
Less: Gas tax funds utilized (81,225) (54,705)
" Closing balance of unspent funds v $ 854,088 $ 675,377

Obligations under Capital Lease

There are six leases payable to the Municipal Finance Authority. The future minimum lease payments
under the capital lease obligation are as follows:

2014 $ 58,838
2015 58,062
2016 94,923
2017 38,198
2018 30,206
Thereafter 295,339

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
calculated as $9,058 (2012 - $2,673). :
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Obligations under Capital Lease (continued)

The Town has entered into capital leases for the following purchases:

1)

2)

5)

6)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on September 28, 2010, for the purchase of a fire truck. Under the terms of
the agreement the Town has prepaid $97,000. The remaining obligation will be repaid with
monthly lease payments in the amount of $773 including interest at 1.75% per annum. The
balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in obligation under capital
leases, is $59,905. Lease to expire September 2015. (2012 - $65,179)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on August 2011 for the purchase of a Photocopier. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $329 including interest at 2.0% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $10,611. Lease to expire July 2016. (2012 $13,867)

‘A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of Bl‘ltlSh Columbia

which commenced on April 2012 for the purchase of a 4X4 fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $1,381 including interest at 2.0% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in obligation -
under capital leases, is $58,585. Lease to expire May 2017. (2012 - $71,290)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on June 2012 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining obligation will
be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $111 including interest at 2.0% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $4,928. Lease to expire July 2017. (2012 - $5,938)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on March 28, 2013 for the purchase of a fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $2,718 including interest at 2.0% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in obhgatlon
under capital leases, is $432,570. Lease to expire March 2018

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on February 2, 2014 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $147 including interest at
2.0% per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2013, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $8,967. Lease to expire February 2019.
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14.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER‘31, 2013

Debenture Debt

In 2012, new long term debt was issued through the Municipal Finance Authority in the amount of one
million dollars to fund waterworks projects. The total long term debt issued and outstanding as at
December 31, 2013 was $3,476,347 ($3,711,148 as at December 31, 2012). The following principal
amounts are payable over the next five years.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
Sewer - Principal $ 8117 $ 8483 $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Water - Principal 24,012 24,012 24,012 . 24,012 24,012 855,928
General - Principal 190,877 196,495 66,033 66,033 66,033 1,898,288

$ 223006 $ 228990 $ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 2,754,216

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
determined as follows: :

Actuarial
Interest Adjustment 2013 Net 2012 Net
Sewer - Interest $ 3187 $ 3110 $§ 77 $ (73)
Water - Interest 41,545 - 41,545 17,000
General - Interest 219,463 65,365 154,098 162,457

$ 264195 $ 68475 $ 195720 $ 179,384

Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Contingent Liabilities

i)

i)

i)

The Town, as a member of the Cowichan Valley Regional District, is jointly and severally liable for
operational deficits or long term debt related to functions in which it participates.

The loan agreements with the Municipal Finance Authority provide that if the Authority does not
have sufficient funds to meet payments on its obligations it shall make payments from the Debt
Reserve Fund which in turn is established by a similar Debt Reserve Fund in the Town and all
other borrowing participants. If the Debt Reserve Fund is deficient the Authority's obligations
become a liability of the regional district and may become a liability of the participating
municipalities.

Various claims have been made against the Town as at December 31, 2013 for incidents which
arose in the ordinary course of operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the
outcomes of the lawsuits, now pending, are not determinable. As the outcomes are not
determinable at this time, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements. Should any
loss result from the resolution of these claims, such loss will be charged to operations in the year
of resolution.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
(b) Pension Liability

The municipality and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for overseeing the management of the ‘Plan, including investment of the assets and
administration of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. Basic pension
benefits provided are based on a formula. The Plan has about 179,000 active members and
approximately 71,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 72 contributors from
the Town of Ladysmith. '

The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2012 indicated a $1.37 billion funding deficit
for basic pension benefits. The next valuation-will be as at December 31, 2015 with results available
in 2016. Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate with the
result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to the
individual employers participating in the Plan, '

The Town of Ladysmith paid $377,728 ($347,369 - 2012) for employer contributions to the Plan in

fiscal 2013.

(c) Reciprocal Insurance Exchange A‘greemenit

The Town is a subscribed member of the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (The
"Exchange") as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act of the Province of British Columbia.
The main purpose of the Exchange is to pool the risks of liability so as to lessen the impact upon any
subscriber. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement the Town is assessed a premium
and specific deductible for its claims based on population. The obligation of the Town with respect to
the Exchange and/or confracts and obligations entered into by the Exchange on behalf of its
subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case several, and not joint and several.
The Town irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and agrees to indemnify and save harmless the
other subscribers against liability losses and costs which the other subscriber may suffer.

Significant Taxpayers
The Town is reliant upon 10 taxpayers for approximately 21.80% (2012 = 22.05%) of the total

property tax revenue which includes Western Forest Products at approximately 13.59% (2012 —
14.45%) of the total property tax revenue.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

16. Funds Held in Trust

These funds account for assets which must be administered as directed by agreement or statute for
certain beneficiaries; in particular, these funds are for the Cemetery Trust Fund. In accordance with
PSAB recommendations on financial statement presentation, trust funds are not included in the
Town's Financial Statements. A summary of trust fund activities by the Town is as follows:

2013 2012

Assets

Cash and short term investment $ 141,707 $ 139,697
Equity

Opening balance _ $ 139,697 $ 137,592
Interest 1,668 1,725
Transfer interest to fund cemetery costs (1,668) - (1,725)
Contributions ‘ 2,010 2,105
Balance, end of year $ 141,707 $ 139,697

17. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

18. Accumulated Surplus

The Town segregates its accumulated surplus in the following categories:

2013 2012

Unappropriated equity : $ 2461,781 3 2,293,139
Appropriated equity (Schedule V) 7,131,815 6,004,098
: 9,593,596 8,297,237

Capital Funds .
General capital fund - ‘ 112,067 4,653
Sewer capital fund - 834 ‘ 826
Water capital fund 607,883 1,130,618
' 720,784 1,136,097

Reserve Funds

Resenve funds {Schedule V) 119,315 107,020
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 73,825,763 73,507,932
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 84,259,458 3 83,048,286

19. Annual Budget

Fiscal plan amounts represent the Financial Plan Bylaw adopted by Council on May 13, 2013.

The Financial Plan anticipated the use of surpluses accumulated in previous years to balance against
current year expenses in excess of current year revenues. In addition, the Financial Plan anticipated
capital expenses rather than amortization expense.

The following shows how these amounts were combined:

Financial Plan Balance for the year , $ -
Add back:
Amortization , (2,270,000)
Proceeds from new debt {4,729,000)
Transfers to/from Owns funds (3,845,255)
less: ' '
Principle payments on debt : . 450,762
Capital expenditures per budget ' 11,311,272
Capital Expenditures expensed in accordance with the Tangible Capital Asset Policy (1,837,630)
Adjusted Annual Surplus - $ (919,851)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

DL 2016 Holdings Corporation {“DL 2016”)

The Town of Ladysmith has an investment in DL 2016 Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary company of the Town.

The Town of Ladysmith leases portions of its waterfront from the Province of British Columbia parts of
which are subleased to DL 2016 for use as a marina.

DL 2016 has entered into operation and maintenance agreement and a license agreement with the
Ladysmith Maritime Society (LMS) for the operation and management of the lease area.

" Pursuant to these agreements DL 2016 could provide security for debt financing in order for LMS to

implement capital improvements to the lease area.

Segmented Information

The Town is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of services to
its citizens such as roads, water, sewer and drainage infrastructure, fire protection, police protection
(RCMP), cemetery, recreation centre, garbage collection and parkland. Distinguishable functional
segments Have been separately disclosed in the segmented mforma’uon The nature of the segments
and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government Services

The City Manager is the liaison between Council and the Town departmevnts and staff. The Corporate
Services Department supports the legislated activities of Council, and provides information to citizens
with respect to Council/Committee processes, reporting procedures and decisions, and Town
activities. Also included in General Government Services is the Finance Department, Informatlon
Technology and Human Resources.

Protective Services

Protection is comprised of fire protection, policing, bylaw enforcement and building inspection.

¢ Bylaw enforcement administers, monitors, and seeks compliance with the bylaws enacted by
the Mayor and Council to regulate the conduct of affairs in the Town of Ladysmith.

e Fire protection is provided by the fire department, whose volunteer members receive
compensation for each callout in which they fake part.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH-
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

21. Segmented Information (Continued)

s Policing is provided under contract with the RCMP operating from a detachment bunldlng
located in and owned by the Town of Ladysmith.

e The Town of Ladysmith's Development Services and Public Works Departments work
together to regulate all construction within the Town. This is achieved through the use of the
Town of Ladysmith's Building and Plumbing Bylaw, the British Columbia Building Code, the
British Columbia Fire Code and other related bylaws and enactments with the Town of
Ladysmith.
Transportation, Garbage and Cemetery

The Transportation (Public Works) Department is responsible for the infrastructure of the Town:

e Ensuring clean and safe water to the Town, supplied through underground pipes. and
reservoirs, ' '

» Maintaining a separate system of underground pipes to collect sewer or waste water for
proper treatment prior to discharging it, _

s Providing and maintaining the Town’s roads, s:dewalks street lights, S|gnage and line
markings, storm dralnage and hydrants,

e Providing other key services including street cleaning and the operation of a local bus service.
Garbage Services (Public Works) is responsible for the garbage collection and compost and recycling
programs operating in the Town of Ladysmith. Garbage and recycling collection is performed by a

contractor.

Cemetery (Public Works) Department provides cemetery services including the maintenance of the
cemetery grounds.

Transportation (Public Works) operated the Ladysmith Trolley, a service that was discontinued on '
September 1, 2013.

Development

The Development Services Department provides short-term and long-term land use planning
services.

e Long-term Planning includes work with the community on reviewing the Town’s Official
Community Plan, developing new Neighborhood Plans, the Trail Plan and the review of
relevant bylaws.

e Short term Planning includes the processing of development applications.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

21.  Segmented Information (Continued)

Recreation and Culture

The Parks, Recreation and Culture Department contribute to the quality of life and personal wellness
of the community through the provision of a variety of special events, programs, services and
facilities. The Frank Jameson Community Centre is the location where the majority of the programs -
are offered. '
Parks

Parks includes and provides maintenance of beach area, trails, golf course, spray-park, ball parks,
and any other civic grounds.

Water

Water includes all of the operating activities related to the treatment and distribution of water
throughout the Town.

Sewer

Sewer includes all of the operating activities related to the collection and treatment of waste water
(sewage) throughout the Town. '

22, Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end, the Town entered into a combination loan/grant agreement between the

Federation of Canadian Municipalities and the Municipal Finance Authority for $10,000,000 for the
construction of the third phase of the waste-water treatment plant.
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"TOWN OF LADYSMITH

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Term

2010-15
2011-16
2012-17
2012-17
2013-18
2014-19

SCHEDULE |
Balance Balance Net
Original Dec 31, PST Principal Dec 31, Interest Interest
Amount 2012 Adjustment Payments 2013 1) Rate
$ 312258 $ 65178 $ 3258 $ 8531 $ 59,005 $ 1208 4.02%
19,780 13,868 667 3,924 10,611 239 2.00%
83,652 . 71,290 3479 16,184 58,585 1,261 2.00%
6,748 5,938 290 1,300 4,928 105 2.00%
452,066 - - 19,496 432,570 6,245 2.00%
8,967 - - - 8,967 - 2.00%
$ 883471 $ $ 49435 $575566 $ 9,058

$ 156,274

7,694

(1) Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
DEBENTURE DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

SCHEDULE [

Balance
Issue Original Dec 31,  Principal Balance Net  Interest
# Term Amount 2012 Payments Dec 31,2013 Interest(1) Rate

Sewer Capital Fund
2000 Sewer Improvements 72 2000-15 $ 93500 $ 24369 $ 7,768 $ 16601 $ 76 6.45%

Water Capital Fund
2012 Water Improvements 118 2012-37 $ 1,000,000 $1,000,000 $ 24012 $ 975988 $ 41545 3.40%

General Capital Fund ]
2000 First Avenue 73 2000-15 $1438,000 $ 374774 $119,468 $ 255306 $ 43,468 B6.35%
2006 RCMP Building 97 2006-31 2,750,000 2,312,005 83,553 2,228,452 110,631 4.66%

' $5281,500 $3,711,148 $234,801 $ 3,476,347 §$ 195,720

(1) Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
TAX REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
SCHEDULE il

Actual 2013 Budget 2013 Actual 2012
General Taxes : . . v
General municipal purposes $ 6,773,970 $ 6,781,999 $ 6,381,921

Grants in lieu and 1% utility tax ‘ 158,857 168,250 153,150
Water and sewer parcel tax ‘ 1,354,154 1,349,850 1,301,280

$ 8,286,981 $ 8200099 $ 7,836,351

Collections for other governments:

School district $ 3,032,020 $ 3,031,765 $ 2,975,207
Regional hospital district 570,051 569,895 451,270
Regicnal district : 798,977 798,845 729,711
BCAA and MFA 85,446 85,442 - 84,122

Library ' 303,110 303,456 286,272
: $ 4,789,604 $ 4,789,403 $ 4,526,582

Less:
Transmission of taxes levied for other governments: :
School district $ 3,032,020 $ 3,031,765 $ 2,975,207
Regional hospital district 569,895 © 569,895 450,665
Regional district 798,845 798,845 728,771
BCAA and MFA : 85,450 85,442 84,122
Library ' 303,456 303,456 286,236
$ 4,789,666 $ 4,789,403 $ 4,525,001
Net Taxation $ 8,286,919 $ 8,290,099 $ 7,837,932
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

General Revenue Fund
Fines and Licence Rewenue
Garbage Collection
General Revenue Fund
Trolley Revenue

Cemetery Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue

Parks, Recreation & Culture Revenue

Permits and Fees (Subdivisions)
Protective Senices Rewvenue

Sewer Utility Fund
User Rates

Waterworks Utility Fund
User Rates

Total Fees and Charges

SCHEDULE IV

Actual 2013 Budget 2013 Actual 2012

$ 76,826 $ 8080 $ 77,99
516,384 510,000 505,292

21173 2,050 18,154

7,862 2,000 14,239

30,020 31,000 31,015

145,088 92,186 94,326

606,779 618,105 584,349

89,535 136,200 116,192

242,247 226,114 243,245

$ 1,735,914 $ 1698455 $ 1,684,808

$ 718,265 $ 673272 $ 680,043

$ 676,576 $ 687,600 $ 694,452

~'$ 3,130,755 $ 3,059,327 $ 3,059,303
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONTINUITY SCHEDULE OF RESERVES AND APPROPRIATED EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

SCHEDULE V

(Unaudited)

Balance’ ~ Interest Balance
Dec. 31,2012 Allocated Contributions Funding Dec. 31,2013

RESERVES
Tax Sale $ 24863 $ 286 $ - $ - $ 25,149
Perpetual Safety Fund - 12,373 143 - - 12,516
Sale Real Property - - - ' - -
Amenity Funds 69,784 866 11,000 - 81,650

TOTAL RESERVES » ’ $ 107,020 § 1295 $ 11,000 $ - % 119,315

APPROPRIATED EQUITY - OPERATIONS
General Operating Fund

Future Projects . 696,310 - - - 667,339 288,761 1,074,888
Equipment . . 630,252 - 157,682 89,591 698,343
Land & Building 136,318 - 86,500 - 2223818
Tax Contingnecy . 161,266 - 46,720 50,000 157,986
Snow & Ice Removal - - 25,000 - 25,000
Infrastructure Deficit - - 70,000 - 70,000
Total General Fund Appropriated Equity 1,624,148 - 1,053,241 428352 2,249,035
Water Operating Fund )
Capital Expenditures : ) 694,766 - 455,492 57,287 1,092,971
MFA Surplus Refunds - 524,076 - - - 524,076
Total Water Operating Fund 1,218,842 - 455,492 57,287 1,617,047
Sewer Operating Fund .
Capital Expenditures 2,554,757 - 197,072 92,449 2,659,380
MFA Surplus Refunds ’ 606,353 - - - 606,353
Total Sewer Operating Fund 3,161,110 - 197,072 92,449 3,265,733
TOTAL APPROPRIATED EQUITY $ 6,004,098 § - $ 1705805 $ 578,088 $ 7,131,815
TOTAL RESERVES AND APPROPRIATEDEQUITY $ 6,111,118 § 1295 $ 1716805 $ 578,088 $ 7,251,130
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
' SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED RESERVES, RESERVES AND EQUITY BY FUND
| AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

SCHEDULE VI

(Unaudited)

Restricted Allocated Appropriated Unappropriated Capital Funds

Reserves Reserves Equity Equity Equity Total
. General operating fund $ - 3 - $ 2249035 % 259,773 $ - $ 2,508,808
Water operating fund - - 1,617,047 479,012 ’ - 2,096,059
Sewer operating fund - - 3,265,733 1,722,996 - 4,988,729
Resene fund 2,846,891 119,315 - - - 2,966,206
General capital fund - - - - 112,087 112,067
Water capital fund ‘ - - - - 607,883 607,883
Sewer capital fund - - - - 834 834
Total $ 2,846,891 118,315 $ 7,131,815 $ 2,461,781 $ 720,784 $ 13,280,586
75
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

GRANT REVENUE
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013
SCHEDULE Vil
2013 2012
Grants: '
Provincial conditional $ 7,958 $ 918,782
Provincial unconditional 338,478 710,268
Federal conditional : 184 102,473
Federal unconditional - 134,205
Regional conditional 941,644 -
Other 87,245 6,235
: $ 1,375,509 3 1,871,963
76
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Debt

Information on all long-term debts for this organization is included in Schedules | & Il to the financial
statements. :
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH |
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements

The Town of Ladysmith has not given any guarantees or indemnities under the Guarantees and
Indemnities Regulation. _ :
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Schedule of Elected Official Remuneration and Expenses

Elected Officials, as per Sec. 168 of the Community Charter
As per Sec. 2 - Financial Information Act and Financial Information Regulation 371/93:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

POSITION

NAME REMUNERATION EXPENSES
Financial Expense
Compensation Allowance Additional
Hutchins, Robert Mayor $ 15,338 | § 7,669 $ 1,544
Arnett, Steven Councillor 7,645 3,823 2,959
Dashwood, Jillian Councillor 7,645 3,823 1,932
Drysdale, William Councillor 7,645 3,823 388
Horth, Gord Councillor 7,645 3,823 1,024
Paterson, Donald Councillor 7,645 3,823 -
Patterson, Glenda Councillor 7,645 3,823 368
Total Elected Officials $ 61,208 | $ - 30,607 $ 8,215
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Employee Remuneration and Expenses

As per Section 2 - Financial Information Act and Financial Information Regulation 371/93

NAME POSITION REMUNERATION EXPENSES
Adams, Felicity Director of Development Services : $ 120,262 $ 2,406
Anderson, Erin Director of Financial Services 120,235 . 3,218
Baker, Curtis Utilities [1l/Chief Operator 88,617 804
Bowden, Sandy Director of Corporate Services 121,480 1,294
Cousins, Karen Manager of Human Resources 97,115 2,495
Ganderton, Mike | Operations Supervisor 75,131 2,650
Malli, Ruth City Manager- 153,157 3,963
Manson, John Director of Infrastructure Services 126,794 2,080
Postings, Clayton | Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture 76,481 613
Skarvig, Tom Building Inspector & Bylaw Enforcement Officer 76,558 393
Slater, Phil Senior Engineer Technologist 75,043 719
Winter, Joanna Manager of Administrative Services 98,366 2,771
Consolidated total of other employees with
remuneration and expenses of $75,000 or less $ 3,219,798 $ 70,459
Total: Other Employees $ 4,449,037 $ 93,865
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Severance Agreements

There were no severance agreements made between the Town of Ladysmith and its non-unionized
employees during fiscal year 2013.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

" YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Payments for Goods and Services

Payee ' Total Paymentis

0762682 BC LTD DBA NEWCASTLE NISSAN $ 31,025
BC ASSESSMENT AUTHORITY ‘ 85,192
BC HYDRO : ' 57,958
BC HYDRO & POWER AUTHORITY 348,235
BFI CANADA.INC ' 462,471
CITYSPACES CONSULTING LTD _ 69,096
COASTAL ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES OF BC LTD. 34,231
COWICHAN VALLEY REGIONAL DISTRICT 1,241,269
COWICHAN VALLEY REGIONAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT ‘ 569,895
ENEX FUELS ' : ‘ 93,018
ESC AUTOMATION INC. A 40,057
FAIRTAX RECOVERY CONSULTANTS 31,868
FLOCORINC ' - 71,844
FORTISBC - NATURAL GAS 43,376
HAYES STEWART LITTLE & CO A : : 26,775
HUB CITY PAVING L.TD 60,080
HUB INTERNATIONAL BARTON 73,667
ICBC ' 36,742
IMPERIAL OIL ‘ 32,118
IVORY TOWER INVESTMENTS LTD 26,596
KNAPPETT INDUSTRIES LTD | 508,616
KNAPPETT PROJECTS INC 165,679
KOERS & ASSOCIATES ENGINEERING LTD 346,188
KPMG LLP 32,816
LAGAN VALLEY EQUIPMENT INC o 91,875
MANULIFE FINANCIAL : 28,512
MAXXAM ANALYTICS ‘ 33,763
MEDICAL SERVICES PLAN ' : 64,172
MILNER GROUP VENTURES ) 49,560
MINISTER OF FINANCE 42,193
MINISTRY OF SMALL BUSINESS AND REVENUE 614,662
MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY : ' 107,335
MUNICIPAL INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF BC 68,899
. MUNICIPAL PENSION FUND ' 377,728
.NOVUS CONSULTING INC 68,768
OPUS DAYTONKNIGHT CONSULTANTS LTD 823,264
PACIFIC BLUE CROSS : 144,646

RECEIVER GENERAL 248,737
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RECEIVER GENERAL FOR CANADA

STEWART MCDANNOLD STUART -

TELUS COMMUNICATIONS INC.

TOP LINE ROOFING LTD

US BANK - CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS
VADIM COMPUTER MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD
VANCOUVER ISLAND REGIONAL LIBRARY
WORKSAFE BC

GRANTS:

Ladysmith & District Historical Society
Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce
Ladysmith Maritime Society

Ladysmith Resources Centre Association

Total payments over $25,000
Payments under $25,000
Grants under $25,000

Total payments made

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7)
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864,640
41,858
29,500
43,939
166,557
24,879
303,456
62,712

30,250
46,827
81,166
36,751

8,975,462
1,369,104
40,250

10,384,816




TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Schedule of Financial Information Approval

The undersigned, as authorized by the Financial Information Regulation, Section 1, subsection 9(2),
approves all the statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial Information, produced
under the Financial Information Act.

Erin Anderson S Robert Hutchins

Director of Financial Services Mayor
June 15, 2014 : June 15, 2014
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